
05/02/2024 Agenda  

 

 
 
 

 
AGENDA 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF BEDFORD, VA 
Bedford County Administration Ground Floor Training Room 

122 E Main Street 
Bedford, VA 24523 

May 2, 2024 
5:30 p.m. 

 
(1) CALL TO ORDER 

 
(2) APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
(3) APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES – April 4, 2024 

 
(4) REPORTS 

 
A. Economic Development Director’s Report 
B. Business Programs Report 
C. Monthly Financial Report 
D. Monthly Accounts Payable Report – (see April bills that have been paid) 

 
EDA   

EDA Mileage – March meeting $114.39 

Bedford Center  

Town of Bedford Power – CVCC  $2,642.67 

Peaksview Landscaping     $503.00 

BRWA  $169.17 

   

New London  

Southside Electric –  $609.64 

Peaksview Landscaping  $1,553.94 

  

Washington Street  

Peaksview Landscaping  $224.00 

TOTAL: $5,816.81 

 
 
 
  



05/02/2024 Agenda  

 

(5) TOWN OF BEDFORD  
A. Letter of support for CRISI program grant application related to rail stop 

 
(6) BEDFORD CENTER FOR BUSINESS 

A. CVCC lease renewal discussion 
 
(7) MONTVALE CENTER FOR COMMERCE 

 
(8) NEW LONDON BUSINESS AND TECHNOLOGY CENTER  

A. Consideration of a request for additional funding and RFP for Lots 10A and 12A site 
development  

B. Consideration of a request for New London to be included as a USPDGA Tour stop 
 

(9) WASHINGTON STREET PROPERTY 
      
(10)  OTHER BUSINESS 

A. Review FY25 draft budget 
B. Consideration of a resolution to adopt EDA Bond issuance rules and procedures 
C. Consideration of a childcare facilities grant program 

 
(11) CLOSED SESSION 
Closed Session pursuant to Section 2.2-3711 (A) (5), Discussion concerning a prospective business or industry or the 
expansion of an existing business or industry where no previous announcement has been made of the business or 
industry's interest in locating or expanding its facilities in the community. 

 
 



04/04/2024 Agenda  
 

 
 
 

 
MINUTES 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF BEDFORD, VA 
Bedford County Administration Ground Floor Training Room 

122 E Main Street 
Bedford, VA 24523 

April 4, 2024 
5:30 p.m. 

Economic Development Authority: 
Present:  David Wells (District 1); Vicki Gardner (District 2); Wyatt Walton (District 3); Matthew    
Braud (District 4); Kristy Milton (District 5); Jimmy Robertson (District 6); Jim Messier (District 7) 
Staff Present: Pam Bailey – Economic Development Director; Holley Scheffel – Business Programs 
Coordinator; Trish Luger-Administrative Assistant; Patrick Skelley – County Attorney; Doug Coffman- 
Public Works Director; Ashley Anderson – Finance Director 

 
 
 

(1) CALL TO ORDER 
Chairman Walton called the meeting to order at 5:31 p.m. 
 

(2) APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Chairman Walton asked for a motion to accept the agenda, as amended. Mr. Braud moved, 
seconded by Mr. Messier. 
Adopted Unanimously 
 

(3) APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES – February 1 and March 5, 2024 
Mr. Walton asked for a motion to approve the February & March, minutes. Mr. Messier moved, 
seconded by Mr. Wells. 
Adopted Unanimously 
 

(4) REPORTS 
 

A. Economic Development Director’s Report 
The reimbursement payment for the VBRSP engineering grant has been received.  
A prospect for TEVA is back with interest and is currently in the due diligence stage.  
Ms. Bailey has been discussing potential interest in an employee resource network, alleviating the 
challenges of employee absenteeism. Bedford companies currently work well with their employees 
and if there is company interest, a grant will be pursued. 
Ms. Bailey visited RA Tools, which purchased the building from Nanotouch. They currently have a 
tenant and expect to utilize the entire space.  
Ms. Bailey, Megan Lucas/LRBA, and Shirley Dodson/VEDP completed BRE visits. 



 

Innovairre – currently 140 employees and hiring 2nd shift production. 
Sterling Blower – currently 44 employees and in need of 14 welders. 
Both companies have been approached by DEQ, which is requesting a study on the dust produced 
by their laser equipment. Ms. Dodson will reach out to the DEQ and other resources for an 
explanation.  
 

B. Business Programs Report 
Two Bedford One Tours were held in March. The first tour connected with the BACC job fair held on 
March 15th at Timberlake Christian School. Nineteen students from Liberty & Staunton River High 
Schools were in attendance. JFHS was invited but there was no student interest.  Two workshops 
were given before the tour. Zach Wimmer/Edward Jones spoke about elevator pitches & Chad 
Cobb/Cintas Co. spoke about responsible communication in a business setting.  
March 27th at Mariners Landing Country Club was the second Bedford One tour. Students learned 
the practice of hospitality and tourism in a large resort. Tiffany & Bruno Silva worked with the 
students to make pizza dough and fresh pasta.  The Director of Training and Talent completed the 
tour by speaking about the expectations of students. Students had the opportunity to complete an 
application for seasonal part-time employment.  

C. Monthly Financial Report 
Ms. Anderson reported on financials as of the end of February 2024. 
 

D. Monthly Accounts Payable Report – (see Feb/March bills that have been paid) 
 

EDA   
$114.39EDA Mileage – March meeting  

Bedford Center  
$6,574.08Town of Bedford Power – CVCC  

Peaksview Landscaping  $1,006.00 
$337.13BRWA  

   
New London  

$618.92Southside Electric – (Feb. only)  
$3,107.88Peaksview Landscaping  

  
Washington Street  
Peaksview Landscaping  $224.00 

$11,982.40TOTAL:  
 
 
 
  

 
 
(5) CLOSED SESSION

Mr. Wells made a motion to enter a closed session, seconded by Mr. Braud.

04/04/2024 Agenda



04/04/2024 Agenda  
 

Closed Session pursuant to Section 2.2-3711 (A) (5), Discussion concerning a prospective business or industry or the 
expansion of an existing business or industry where no previous announcement has been made of the business or 
industry's interest in locating or expanding its facilities in the community. (Project PhD) 
Mr. Braud made a motion, seconded by Ms. Milton to come out of a closed session.  
 
(6) TOWN OF BEDFORD 

The lease for CVCC expires July 2025 and they desire to extend the lease another five years, until 
2030. Ms. Bailey will add this to next month's agenda. 
 

  
(7) BEDFORD CENTER FOR BUSINESS 

East Coast Fabricators had a repair and safety implication to one of their garage doors. Service has 
been completed.  

 
(8) MONTVALE CENTER FOR COMMERCE 

Nothing new to report.  
A closed session will be on next month's agenda for a new business expected in the Montvale 
community.  
 
Mr. Wells exited the meeting at 6:48 pm. 
 

(9) NEW LONDON BUSINESS AND TECHNOLOGY CENTER  
A. Discussion regarding next steps for TRRC Grant for Lots 10A and 12A site 

development. 
Ms. Bailey asked the question of grading the sites and the consensus is to move forward.   
Mr. Braud made a motion, seconded by Ms. Milton to authorize the Director to seek an extension 
on the grant.  
Adopted Unanimously 
 

B. Resolution to approve VDOT grant application for Meade Road improvement and 
extension design services. 

Mr. Braud made a motion, seconded by Mr. Robertson to create a resolution to authorize the 
Director to seek grant funding from VDOT for the extension, improvement of the roundabout, and 
improvement of the Hwy 460 intersection.  
Adopted Unanimously 
Additions to the grant, letters submitted from Southside Electric and Rich Diddams/Liberty 
University were suggested. 
  

(10) WASHINGTON STREET PROPERTY 
A.  Consideration of sewer line repair. 

Mr. Robertson made a motion, seconded by Ms. Milton to authorize Johnny on the Spot to 
complete the repair.  
Adopted Unanimously 

      
(11)  OTHER BUSINESS 



04/04/2024 Agenda  
 

A. Review the FY25 draft budget. 
Additions to the report include interest earnings, and increased insurance premiums, which may 
fluctuate. The VBRSP grant funds were removed. 
Ms. Bailey spoke about utilizing performance-based incentives to help companies enhance services. 
To align with the EDA’s strategic plan, the EDA is supportive of any business that generates revenue 
for the county. 
A recommendation of $150,000 for the emergency/contingency fund was discussed. Ms. Anderson 
spoke about a contingency fund that is equivalent to five percent, or larger, of the budget.  
 

B. Consideration of RFP for broker services regarding EDA-owned business park land. 
Mr. Braud made a motion, seconded by Mr. Robertson to authorize staff to circulate the RFP for 
real estate services for the EDA. 
Adopted Unanimously 
 
 

C. Consideration of plans for Centra warehouse in Forest Professional Park. 
Expansions of 76800 square feet and another 20,000. EDA must approve due to the covenants of 
the park. The Planning staff of Community Development specifically asked the EDA to approve the 
plans due to the covenants.   
Mr. Messier made a motion, seconded by Mr. Braud to approve the project as presented.  
Adopted Unanimously 

 
 
Adjourned 7:30 p.m. 



Revised YTD Available
Budget Actual Budget

Revenues
Interest On Bank Deposits -$                 # 3,188.68$         0 (3,188.68)$       
Interest On Investments -                   # 12,643.26         0 (12,643.26)       
BRWA Cell Tower Income -                   # 11,938.59         0 (11,938.59)       
Miscellaneous Revenue -                   # 133,589.70       0 (133,589.70)     
Recovered Costs - Belvac 1,447.59           # -                   0 1,447.59           
Recovered Costs - Damage Preve 390.41              # -                   0 390.41              
Recovered Costs - Liberty Univ 2,597.00           # -                   0 2,597.00           
Recovered Costs - Nanotouch 393.00              # -                   0 393.00              
Smplm -Recovered Costs - Other 1,061.00           # -                   0 1,061.00           
Transfer From General Fd 163,055.00       # -                   0 163,055.00       

Total Revenues 168,944.00$     161,360.23$     7,583.77$         

Expenditures
Accounting & Auditing Services 10,000.00$       # 17,660.00$       # (7,660.00)$       
Advertising Services 6,500.00           # 7,690.66           # (1,190.66)         
Attorney And Legal Services 2,500.00           # 132.20              # 2,367.80           
Admin Salary -Skilled Services 23,000.00         # 14,300.67         # 8,699.33           
Building Repair & Maint Svcs 150,000.00       # 46,330.85         # 103,669.15       
Building Repair & Maint Svcs -                   # 2,376.25           # (2,376.25)         
Postage And Freight 120.00              # -                   # 120.00              
Conference & Education 1,500.00           # 500.00              # 1,000.00           
Employee Recognition 100.00              # -                   # 100.00              
Travel Mileage 1,500.00           # 965.80              # 534.20              
General Liability Insurance 654.00              # -                   # 654.00              
Automobile Liability Insurance 150.00              # -                   # 150.00              
Property Insurance 10,018.00         # -                   # 10,018.00         
Boiler And Machinery Insurance 1,264.00           # -                   # 1,264.00           
Other Financial Insurances 675.00              # -                   # 675.00              
Public Officials Insurance 182.00              # -                   # 182.00              
Cyber Risk Insurance 100.00              # -                   # 100.00              
Office Supplies 500.00              # -                   # 500.00              
Food & Meals Non-Travel 2,300.00           # 1,549.06           # 750.94              
BDONE-Food Meals Non Travel 3,000.00           # 1,262.50           # 1,737.50           
BSAPP-Food Meals Non Travel 2,500.00           # -                   # 2,500.00           

Total Expenditures 216,563.00$     92,767.99$       123,795.01$     
Net Surplus (Deficit) (47,619.00)$     68,592.24$       (116,211.24)$   

For The Month Ended March 31, 2024

Economic Development Authority
YTD Budget Report

Administration



Revised YTD Available
Budget Actual Budget

Revenues
Property Rentals-CVCC 142,296.00$     # 142,296.00$     0 -$                 
Property Rentals-East Coast 121,280.00       # 90,960.03         0 30,319.97         
Property Rentals-MBC 3,600.00           # 2,700.00           0 900.00              

Total Revenues 267,176.00$     235,956.03$     31,219.97$       

Expenditures
Building Repair & Maint Svcs 9,500.00$         # 476.25$            # 9,023.75$         
CVCC-Bldg Repair & Maint Svcs -                   # 1,092.18           # (1,092.18)         
Grounds Repair & Maint Svcs 8,900.00           # 2,553.02           # 6,346.98           
Grounds Repair & Maint Svcs -                   # 2,918.36           # (2,918.36)         
CVCC - Equip Rep & Maint Svcs 31,200.00         # 8,943.46           # 22,256.54         
ECOST - Equip Rep & Maint Svcs 2,000.00           # 875.00              # 1,125.00           
CVCC Electrical Service Cahrges 40,000.00         # 27,728.64         # 12,271.36         
CVCC-Water & Sewer Charges 2,000.00           # 1,443.11           # 556.89              
Other Service Charges -                   # 77.87                0 (77.87)              
CVCC-Building Materials -                   # 354.16              0 (354.16)            

Total Expenditures 93,600.00$       46,462.05$       47,137.95$       
Net Surplus (Deficit) 173,576.00$     189,493.98$     (15,917.98)$     

Economic Development Authority
YTD Budget Report

Bedford Center for Business
For The Month Ended March 31, 2024



Revised YTD Available
Budget Actual Budget

Revenues
Property Rentals-Brewery 43,818.36$       # 32,863.77$       0 10,954.59$       

Total Revenues 43,818.36$       32,863.77$       10,954.59$       

Expenditures
VCC-Debt Principal 13,035.29$       # 9,461.60$         0 3,573.69$         
VCC-Debt Interest 30,783.07         # 23402.17 0 7,380.90           

Total Expenditures 43,818.36$       32,863.77$       10,954.59$       
Net Surplus (Deficit) -$                 -$                 -$                 

Economic Development Authority
YTD Budget Report

Bedford Brewery
For The Month Ended March 31, 2024



Revised YTD Available
Budget Actual Budget

Revenues
Total Revenues -$                 # -$                 -$                 

Expenditures
Grounds Repair & Maint Svcs 1,600.00$         # -$                 0 1,600.00$         

Total Expenditures 1,600.00$         -$                 1,600.00$         
Net Surplus (Deficit) 1,600.00$         -$                 1,600.00$         

Economic Development Authority
YTD Budget Report

Montvale Center for Commerce
For The Month Ended March 31, 2024



Revised YTD Available
Budget Actual Budget

Revenues
Property Rentals 30,600.00$       # 20,400.00$       0 10,200.00$       

Total Revenues 30,600.00$       20,400.00$       10,200.00$       

Expenditures
Building Repair & Maint Svcs 7,500.00$         # 724.98$            # 6,775.02$         
Grounds Repair & Maint Svcs 1,500.00           # 1,076.29           # 423.71              
Equipment Repair & Maint Svcs -                   # -                   # -                   
Vista-Building Materials -                   # 2,196.53           # (2,196.53)         
Site Improv-Parking Lots/Pavin 200,000.00       # 226,692.00       0 (26,692.00)       

Total Expenditures 209,000.00$     230,689.80$     (21,689.80)$     
Net Surplus (Deficit) (178,400.00)$   (210,289.80)$   31,889.80$       

Economic Development Authority
YTD Budget Report
Washington Street

For The Month Ended March 31, 2024



Revised YTD Available
Budget Actual Budget

Revenues
Property Rentals - Belvac 260,000.00$     # 195,004.03$     0 64,995.97$       
NL Pase 2-State Grant Revenue 63,750.00         # -                   0 63,750.00         

Total Revenues 323,750.00$     195,004.03$     128,745.97$     

Expenditures
A & E Services -$                 # 1,220.00$         0 (1,220.00)$       
NLPH2- A&E Services 127,500.00       # 127,500.00       0 -                   
Building Repair & Maint Svcs 3,102.00           # 514.00              0 2,588.00           
Grounds Repair & Maint Svcs 20,000.00         # 19,432.31         0 567.69              
Electrical Service Charges 7,100.00           # 4,769.90           0 2,330.10           
Other Service Charges -                   # 44.30                0 (44.30)              
Site Improvements -                   # 1,623.93           0 (1,623.93)         
Shell Bldg - Debt Principal 105,420.23       # 78,852.22         0 26,568.01         
Shell Bldg - Debt Interest 48,113.65         # 36,298.19         0 11,815.46         

Total Expenditures 311,235.88$     270,254.85$     40,981.03$       
Net Surplus (Deficit) 12,514.12$       (75,250.82)$     87,764.94$       

Economic Development Authority
YTD Budget Report

New London
For The Month Ended March 31, 2024



Revised YTD Available
Budget Actual Budget

Revenues
Interest On Bank Deposits -$                 # 3,188.68$         # (3,188.68)$       
Interest On Investments -                   # 12,643.26         # (12,643.26)       
BRWA Cell Tower Income -                   # 11,938.59         # (11,938.59)       
Miscellaneous Revenue -                   # 133,589.70       # (133,589.70)     
Recovered Costs - Belvac 1,447.59           # -                   # 1,447.59           
Recovered Costs - Damage Preve 390.41              # -                   # 390.41              
Recovered Costs - Liberty Univ 2,597.00           # -                   # 2,597.00           
Recovered Costs - Nanotouch 393.00              # -                   # 393.00              
Smplm -Recovered Costs - Other 1,061.00           # -                   # 1,061.00           
Transfer From General Fd 163,055.00       # -                   # 163,055.00       
Property Rentals-CVCC 142,296.00       # 142,296.00       # -                   
Property Rentals-East Coast 121,280.00       # 90,960.03         # 30,319.97         
Property Rentals-MBC 3,600.00           # 2,700.00           # 900.00              
Property Rentals-Brewery 43,818.36         # 32,863.77         # 10,954.59         
Property Rentals 30,600.00         # 20,400.00         # 10,200.00         
Property Rentals - Belvac 260,000.00       # 195,004.03       # 64,995.97         
NL Pase 2-State Grant Revenue 63,750.00         # -                   # 63,750.00         

Total Revenues 834,288.36$     # 645,584.06$     188,704.30$     

Expenses
Accounting & Auditing Services 10,000.00$       # 17,660.00$       # (7,660.00)$       
Advertising Services 6,500.00           # 7,690.66           # (1,190.66)         
Attorney And Legal Services 2,500.00           # 132.20              # 2,367.80           
Admin Salary -Skilled Services 23,000.00         # 14,300.67         # 8,699.33           
Building Repair & Maint Svcs 150,000.00       # 46,330.85         # 103,669.15       
Building Repair & Maint Svcs -                   # 2,376.25           # (2,376.25)         
Postage And Freight 120.00              # -                   # 120.00              
Conference & Education 1,500.00           # 500.00              # 1,000.00           
Employee Recognition 100.00              # -                   # 100.00              
Travel Mileage 1,500.00           # 965.80              # 534.20              
General Liability Insurance 654.00              # -                   # 654.00              
Automobile Liability Insurance 150.00              # -                   # 150.00              
Property Insurance 10,018.00         # -                   # 10,018.00         
Boiler And Machinery Insurance 1,264.00           # -                   # 1,264.00           
Other Financial Insurances 675.00              # -                   # 675.00              
Public Officials Insurance 182.00              # -                   # 182.00              
Cyber Risk Insurance 100.00              # -                   # 100.00              
Office Supplies 500.00              # -                   # 500.00              

Economic Development Authority
YTD Budget Report

Combined
For The Month Ended March 31, 2024



Food & Meals Non-Travel 2,300.00           # 1,549.06           # 750.94              
BDONE-Food Meals Non Travel 3,000.00           # 1,262.50           # 1,737.50           
BSAPP-Food Meals Non Travel 2,500.00           # -                   # 2,500.00           
Building Repair & Maint Svcs 9,500.00           # 476.25              # 9,023.75           
CVCC-Bldg Repair & Maint Svcs -                   # 1,092.18           # (1,092.18)         
Grounds Repair & Maint Svcs 8,900.00           # 2,553.02           # 6,346.98           
Grounds Repair & Maint Svcs -                   # 2,918.36           # (2,918.36)         
CVCC - Equip Rep & Maint Svcs 31,200.00         # 8,943.46           # 22,256.54         
ECOST - Equip Rep & Maint Svcs 2,000.00           # 875.00              # 1,125.00           
CVCC Electrical Service Cahrges 40,000.00         # 27,728.64         # 12,271.36         
CVCC-Water & Sewer Charges 2,000.00           # 1,443.11           # 556.89              
Other Service Charges -                   # 77.87                # (77.87)              
CVCC-Building Materials -                   # 354.16              # (354.16)            
VCC-Debt Principal 13,035.29         # 9,461.60           # 3,573.69           
VCC-Debt Interest 30,783.07         # 23,402.17         # 7,380.90           
Grounds Repair & Maint Svcs 1,600.00           # -                   # 1,600.00           
Building Repair & Maint Svcs 7,500.00           # 724.98              # 6,775.02           
Grounds Repair & Maint Svcs 1,500.00           # 1,076.29           # 423.71              
Equipment Repair & Maint Svcs -                   # -                   # -                   
Vista-Building Materials -                   # 2,196.53           # (2,196.53)         
Site Improv-Parking Lots/Pavin 200,000.00       # 226,692.00       # (26,692.00)       
A & E Services -                   # 1,220.00           # (1,220.00)         
NLPH2- A&E Services 127,500.00       # 127,500.00       # -                   
Building Repair & Maint Svcs 3,102.00           # 514.00              # 2,588.00           
Grounds Repair & Maint Svcs 20,000.00         # 19,432.31         # 567.69              
Electrical Service Charges 7,100.00           # 4,769.90           # 2,330.10           
Other Service Charges -                   # 44.30                # (44.30)              
Site Improvements -                   # 1,623.93           # (1,623.93)         
Shell Bldg - Debt Principal 105,420.23       # 78,852.22         # 26,568.01         
Shell Bldg - Debt Interest 48,113.65         # 36,298.19         # 11,815.46         
Performance Incentives -                   30,000.00         (30,000.00)       

Total Expenses 875,817.24$     # 703,038.46$     172,778.78$     

Net Surplus (Deficit) (41,528.88)$     # (57,454.40)$     15,925.52$       



MTD YTD
Actual Actual

Revenues
Interest On Bank Deposits 244.89$             3,188.68$        
Interest On Investments 6,992.90            12,643.26        
BRWA Cell Tower Income 1,326.51            11,938.59        
Miscellaneous Revenue -                    133,589.70      

Total Revenues 8,564.30$          161,360.23$    

Expenditures
Accounting & Auditing Services -                    17,660.00        
Advertising Services 3,310.00$          7,690.66$        
Attorney And Legal Services -                    132.20             
Admin Salary -Skilled Services -                    14,300.67        
Building Repair & Maint Svcs 21,900.00          46,330.85        
Building Repair & Maint Svcs -                    2,376.25          
Conference & Education 500.00               500.00             
Travel Mileage 228.78               965.80             
Food & Meals Non-Travel -                    1,549.06          
BDONE-Food Meals Non Travel 537.36               1,262.50          

Total Expenditures 26,476.14$        92,767.99$      
Net Gain (Loss) (17,911.84)$      68,592.24$      

Economic Development Authority
Income Statement

For The Month Ended March 31, 2024
Administration



MTD YTD
Actual Actual

Revenues
Property Rentals - CVCC -$                  142,296.00$    
Property Rentals-East Coast 10,106.67          90,960.03        
Proper Rentals-MBC 300.00               2,700.00          

Total Revenues 10,406.67$        235,956.03$    

Expenditures
Building Repair & Maint Svcs -                    476.25             
CVCC-Bldg Repair & Maint Svcs 80.00$               1,092.18$        
Grounds Repair & Maint Svcs 503.00               2,553.02          
Grounds Repair & Maint Svcs -                    2,918.36          
CVCC-Equip Rep & Maint Svcs -                    8,943.46          
ECOST-Equip Rep & Maint Svcs -                    875.00             
CVCC - Electrical Svc Charges 5,671.44            27,728.64        
CVCC - Water & Sewer Charges 178.22               1,443.11          
Other Service Charges -                    77.87               
CVCC Building Materials -                    354.16             

Total Expenditures 6,432.66$          46,462.05$      
Net Gain (Loss) 3,974.01$          189,493.98$    

Economic Development Authority
Income Statement

For The Month Ended March 31, 2024
Bedford Center for Business



MTD YTD
Actual Actual

Revenues
Property Rentals-Brewery 3,651.53$          32,863.77$      

Total Revenues 3,651.53$          32,863.77$      

Expenditures
VCC-Debt Principal 2,226.65$          9,461.60$        
VCC-Debt Interest 5,076.41            23402.17

Total Expenditures 7,303.06$          32,863.77$      
Net Gain (Loss) -$                  -$                 

Economic Development Authority
Income Statement

For The Month Ended March 31, 2024
Bedford Brewery



MTD YTD
Actual Actual

Revenues
Total Revenues -$                  # -$                 

Expenditures
Total Expenditures -$                  -$                 

Net Gain (Loss) -$                  -$                 

Economic Development Authority
Income Statement

For The Month Ended March 31, 2024
Montvale Center for Commerce



MTD YTD
Actual Actual

Revenues
Property Rentals 2,550.00$          20,400.00$      

Total Revenues 2,550.00$          20,400.00$      

Expenditures
Building Repair & Maint Svcs -$                  724.98$           
Grounds Repair & Maint Svcs 224.00               1,076.29          
Equipment Repair & Maint Svcs -                    -                   
Vista-Building Materials 61.27                 2,196.53          
Site Improv-Parking Lots/Pavin -                    226,692.00      

Total Expenditures 285.27$             230,689.80$    
Net Gain (Loss) 2,264.73$          (210,289.80)$   

Economic Development Authority
Income Statement

For The Month Ended March 31, 2024
Washington Street



MTD YTD
Actual Actual

Revenues
Property Rentals - Belvac 21,666.67$        195,004.03$    

Total Revenues 21,666.67$        195,004.03$    

Expenditures
A & E Services -$                  1,220.00$        

NLPH2 - A&E Services -                    127,500.00      
Building Repair & Maint Svcs 257.00               514.00             
Grounds Repair & Maint Svcs 1,553.94            19,432.31        
Electrical Service Charges -                    4,769.90          
Other Service Charges -                    44.30               
Site Improvements 1,623.93            1,623.93          
Shell Bldg - Debt Principal 9,030.46            78,852.22        
Shell Bldg - Debt Interest 3,764.03            36,298.19        

Total Expenditures 16,229.36$        270,254.85$    
Net Gain (Loss) 5,437.31$          (75,250.82)$     

Economic Development Authority
Income Statement

For The Month Ended March 31, 2024
New London



MTD YTD
Actual Actual

Revenues
Interest On Bank Deposits 244.89$             # 3,188.68$        
Interest On Investments 6,992.90            # 12,643.26        
BRWA Cell Tower Income 1,326.51            # 11,938.59        
Miscellaneous Revenue -                    # 133,589.70      
Property Rentals - CVCC -                    # 142,296.00      
Property Rentals-East Coast 10,106.67          # 90,960.03        
Proper Rentals-MBC 300.00               # 2,700.00          
Property Rentals-Brewery 3,651.53            # 32,863.77        
Property Rentals 2,550.00            # 20,400.00        
Property Rentals - Belvac 21,666.67          # 195,004.03      

Total Revenues 46,839.17$        # 645,584.06$    

Expenses
Accounting & Auditing Services -                    # 17,660.00        
Advertising Services 3,310.00$          # 7,690.66$        
Attorney And Legal Services -                    # 132.20             
Admin Salary -Skilled Services -                    # 14,300.67        
Building Repair & Maint Svcs 21,900.00          # 46,330.85        
Building Repair & Maint Svcs -                    # 2,376.25          
Postage And Freight -                    # -                   
Conference & Education 500.00               # 500.00             
Employee Recognition -                    # -                   
Travel Mileage 228.78               # 965.80             
General Liability Insurance -                    # -                   
Automobile Liability Insurance -                    # -                   
Property Insurance -                    # -                   
Boiler And Machinery Insurance -                    # -                   
Other Financial Insurances -                    # -                   
Public Officials Insurance -                    # -                   
Cyber Risk Insurance -                    # -                   
Office Supplies -                    # -                   
Food & Meals Non-Travel -                    # 1,549.06          
BDONE-Food Meals Non Travel 537.36               # 1,262.50          
Building Repair & Maint Svcs -                    # 476.25             
CVCC-Bldg Repair & Maint Svcs 80.00                 # 1,092.18          
Grounds Repair & Maint Svcs 503.00               # 2,553.02          
Grounds Repair & Maint Svcs -                    # 2,918.36          
CVCC-Equip Rep & Maint Svcs -                    # 8,943.46          
ECOST-Equip Rep & Maint Svcs -                    # 875.00             

Economic Development Authority
Income Statement

Combined
For The Month Ended March 31, 2024



MTD YTD
Actual Actual

Economic Development Authority
Income Statement

Combined
For The Month Ended March 31, 2024

CVCC - Electrical Svc Charges 5,671.44            # 27,728.64        
CVCC - Water & Sewer Charges 178.22               # 1,443.11          
Other Service Charges -                    # 77.87               
CVCC Building Materials -                    # 354.16             
VCC-Debt Principal 2,226.65            # 9,461.60          
VCC-Debt Interest 5,076.41            # 23,402.17        
Building Repair & Maint Svcs -                    # 724.98             
Grounds Repair & Maint Svcs 224.00               # 1,076.29          
Equipment Repair & Maint Svcs -                    # -                   
Vista-Building Materials 61.27                 # 2,196.53          
Site Improv-Parking Lots/Pavin -                    # 226,692.00      
A & E Services -                    # 1,220.00          

NLPH2 - A&E Services -                    # 127,500.00      
Building Repair & Maint Svcs 257.00               # 514.00             
Grounds Repair & Maint Svcs 1,553.94            # 19,432.31        
Electrical Service Charges -                    # 4,769.90          
Other Service Charges -                    # 44.30               
Site Improvements 1,623.93            # 1,623.93          
Shell Bldg - Debt Principal 9,030.46            # 78,852.22        
Shell Bldg - Debt Interest 3,764.03            # 36,298.19        

Total Expenses 56,726.49$        # 673,038.46$    

Net Gain (Loss) (9,887.32)$        # (27,454.40)$     

Operating Investment Total
Beginning Cash Balance 523,082.70$      1,505,650.36$ 2,028,733.06$ 
Net Gain (Loss) (16,880.22)        6,992.90          (9,887.32)         
Less: Accounts Payable 6,067.06            -                   6,067.06          
Less: Performance Incentives -                    -                   -                   
Less encumbered amt -                    -                   -                   
Less: Cell Tower Rent Rec'd in January (1,326.51)          -                   (1,326.51)         
Ending Cash Balance 510,943.03$      1,512,643.26$ 2,023,586.29   



 

 

 
 

BEDFORD COUNTY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
Agenda Item Summary 

                

AGENDA ITEM # 5A  

MEETING DATE: May 2, 2024 

MEETING TYPE: Regular Meeting 

ITEM TITLE: Letter of Support for CRISI program grant application related to rail stop 
                

SUMMARY 

On behalf of the Bedford area, the Town of Bedford is applying for a grant from the Federal Rail Administration for 
the “Consolidated Rail Infrastructure and Safety Improvements” Program (CRISI) for the proposed rail stop in town 
to connect to the Amtrak system. This Federal grant would provide funds to complete initial stages of the project for 
planning, environmental review, and initial development documents including engineering and cost estimates. 
Construction funds would be sought after the initial work is done that more accurately assesses the cost and final 
design.  

The Bedford rail stop has been under development in the community since 2014. The most recent work established 
the ridership gains that would be made to contribute to the Amtrak network. Since that study estimated over 12,000 
additional riders, the Virginia Passenger Rail Authority has announced increased ridership growth in the Amtrak 
system. The economic value of connecting train riders in Bedford will be seen through additional traffic coming to 
Bedford in support of businesses. It will also provide businesses and residents with easy access to this valuable public 
transportation beyond Bedford. 

The Town is seeking a letter of support from the Bedford County EDA for the Town’s grant application that is due 
on May 28. 

If authorized, staff will work with Mary Zirkle to draft a letter of support for the Chairman to sign at a later date. 

 
 
 

 



 

 

 
 

BEDFORD COUNTY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
Agenda Item Summary 

                

AGENDA ITEM # 6A  

MEETING DATE: May 2, 2024 

MEETING TYPE: Regular Meeting 

ITEM TITLE: CVCC Lease renewal 
                

SUMMARY 

CVCC is currently in a lease agreement with the EDA for 15,300 SF of space at 1633 Venture Blvd. in Bedford. 
The existing lease is dated November 7, 2019, for a 5-year term beginning July 1, 2020, and terminating on June 30. 
2025.  
CVCC would like to extend the existing lease for 5 additional years through and including June 30, 2030.  
A copy of the lease agreement along with the proposed amendment are attached.  
 
FY21-24 actuals:  
Revenue total: $577,184.00 
Expense total: $213,744.82 
Net revenue: $363,439.18 
 
 
 
 
 

 





































VCCS Amendment to Deed of Lease  
4/15/07   Lease No .VCCS 292-19-001 
 
 

-1- 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO DEED OF LEASE 
 

This FIRST AMENDMENT TO DEED OF LEASE (the “Amendment”), dated ______, 2024, is 
made part of the Deed of Lease dated November 7, 2019  (the “Lease”) by and between THE 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF BEDFORD, 
VIRGINIA, a Virginia Authorityas Landlord, and the COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, 
CENTRAL VIRGINIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE, ON BEHALF OF THE STATE 
BOARD FOR COMMUNITY COLLEGES, as Tenant.  
 

W I T N E S S E T H 
 
WHEREAS, by the terms of the Lease, Landlord leased to Tenant approximately 15,300 rentable 
square feet of space, located at 1633 Venture Boulevard, Bedford, Virginia 2452; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Lease is scheduled to terminate on June 30, 2025 and the parties agree to extend 
the term of the Lease on the terms contained in this First Amendment; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, it is agreed that the Lease be amended as follows: 
 
1. The term of the Lease shall be extended for five (5) years through and including June 30, 

2030.  

2. For the period of the extended term, Tenant shall pay Landlord [  ] monthly, in arrears at 
the end of each month. 

3. Tenant shall have the option to renew the Lease Agreement for five (5) additional terms 
of two (2) years each, commencing immediately after the expiration of the current term 
of the Lease Agreement on June 30, 2030. 

4. Except as amended herein, the Lease shall remain in full force and effect.  

This Amendment shall not be effective or binding unless and until signed by all parties, and all 
appropriate approvals are obtained pursuant to Sections 2.2-1149 and 23.1-1002 of the Code of 
Virginia (1950), as amended. 
 

[Remainder of page intentionally blank.  Signature pages follow.]  
 



VCCS Amendment to Deed of Lease  
4/15/07   Lease No .VCCS 292-19-001 
 
 

-2- 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have affixed their signatures and seals. 
 
 
 
  LANDLORD:    THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE  
     COUNTY OF BEDFORD, VIRGINIA,  
             a Virginia Authority 
 
    By:         
    Name:         
    Title:         
 
 
 
STATE OF VIRGINIA 
CITY/COUNTY OF __________________, to wit: 
 
 The foregoing First Amendment to Deed of Lease was acknowledged before me this 
______day of _______, 2024 by ___________________________ (Name), acting in his/her 
capacity as _____________________ (Title) of THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF BEDFORD, VIRGINIA, a Virginia Authority, on behalf 
of the Authority. 
 
 
  
 



VCCS Amendment to Deed of Lease  
4/15/07   Lease No .VCCS 292-19-001 
 
 

-3- 

 
 
  TENANT:   
 
  COMMONWEATH OF VIRGINIA, CENTRAL VIRGINIA  
  COMMUNITY COLLEGE,ON BEHALF OF THE STATE  
  BOARD FOR  COMMUNITY COLLEGES 
 
  By:      ______   
   President 
 
 
STATE OF VIRGINIA 
CITY/COUNTY OF __________________, to wit: 
 
The foregoing Amendment to Deed of Lease was acknowledged before me this ______day of 
_____, 2024 by ___________________, as President of CENTRAL VIRGINIA COMMUNITY 
COLLEGE. 
 
 My commission expires:      
 My registration number is: ______________ 
 
             
      Notary Public 
 
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
 
By: ________________________________ 
             Assistant Attorney General 



 

 

 
 

BEDFORD COUNTY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
Agenda Item Summary 

                

AGENDA ITEM # 8A  

MEETING DATE: May 2, 2024 

MEETING TYPE: Regular Meeting 

ITEM TITLE: Additional funding and RFP for New London Lots 10A and 12A pad-ready sites 
                

SUMMARY 

In February 2021, the Board of Supervisors approved of an application submission, acceptance, and appropriation of 
an $80,000 grant from the Virginia Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission (TRRC) to create a total of two pad-
ready sites on lot 10A and 12A in New London. The County matched this funding for a total of $160,000 for the 
project. 
 
The engineering services (topo survey and 90% of grading plans) for the project were completed in January 2022 and 
the project was put on hold due to a prospective company that was interested in several parcels including lots 10A 
and 12A. 
 
To date $20,900 has been spent and $10,000 has been reimbursed by the TRRC. A balance of $139,100 is available 
for the grading project. ($70,000 balance from TRRC and $69,100 balance from Bedford County.) 
Estimated costs to grade the lots is estimated at $106,440 for lot 10A and $125,520 for lot 12A for a total of nearly 
$232,000. This is additional approximately $93,000 in needed funding to make these two lots pad ready. 
 
Using existing site plans that have been developed, both lots 10A and 12A would accommodate a 15,000+/- SF 
building.  
The TRRC has approved a one-year grant extension for this project with the understanding that the project may take 
an additional 12-18 months. The grant’s new deadline is May 27, 2025. No additional funding is available from the 
TRRC for this project. 
 
Recommendation:  
Provide the additional funding and advertise the RFP for the project to move forward. 
 
 



 

 

 
 

BEDFORD COUNTY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
Agenda Item Summary 

                

AGENDA ITEM # 9B  

MEETING DATE: May 2, 2024 

MEETING TYPE: Regular Meeting 

ITEM TITLE: Consideration of a request for New London to be included as a USGPDA tour stop  
                

SUMMARY 

The USPDGA has reached out to Bedford and Lynchburg request that the New London Disc Golf Course be 
included as a stop on their pro/am tour.  
Here are the details for the PDGA Pro/Am Tour Stop Opportunity: 

 PDGA Pro/Am Tour Stop for September 2025 and beyond. 
 This event would replace Waco, TX, due to deteriorating courses. 
 The event will start small, with around 600 athletes in the first year, with 97% being 18 or older. 
 Estimated number of spectators for this event will start at 5,000. 
 90% of athletes and spectators will come from further than 60 miles away. 
 This event will have the opportunity to grow and use multiple disc golf courses in Bedford County and 

Lynchburg, with Ivy Hill and New London being the main two courses. Previous events run by Nate Heinold 
(President of PDGA) have grown to a 15-course event with 2,400 players in Illinois and a 7-course event with 
1,200 players in Michigan. 

 There are no PDGA-sanctioned tour stops in the Mid-Atlantic. 
 This event will attract media attention to the region (just like Pro Worlds will). 
 There is a $30,000 cash naming rights/partnership ask. A partnership between the localities would guarantee 

marketing visibility for Lynchburg and Bedford County. An in-kind option is not available. 
 The estimated economic impact of this event totals $1.4 million in direct spending to the localities, with 

$1.349 million coming from attendee spending. 
o Lodging - $405,847 
o Transportation - $52,696 
o Food & Beverage - $341,495 
o Retail - $387,134 
o Recreation - $162,497 

 



 

I am not asking the EDA for funding for the naming rights as this request will go before the Board of Supervisors 
from the Tourism Department. I am asking for permission to include New London as a stop. 
I have communicated that the main priority for the New London Business & Technology Center is business 
development. This “stop” on the tour will not impede future development, not does it grant the tournament stops as 
a priority to any future projects. 
The County Parks & Recreation department is on board and is proposing five additional “holes” for the course in 
order to prepare for potential needed changes. The additional holes could go on the back “triangle” that is not slated 
for future development, or on County-owned land adjacent to New London.  
 
Staff recommendation:  
Approve the use of the New London Business & Technology Center’s disc golf course as a stop on the USPDGA 
annual tour with the caveat that holes may need to be moved as needed. 

 



FY 22 FY 23 YTD FY24 FY 25

ACTUAL ACTUAL AS OF 3/31/24 BUDGET PROPOSED

EDA REVENUES

INTEREST EARNINGS 20,323              20,346              27,771                15,918              89,268              

PROPERTY RENTALS 527,644            605,050            484,224              601,594            601,595            

GRANT REVENUES -                   -                   63,750                63,750              -                   

MISCELLANEOUS 163,967            2,857                69,840                -                   -                   

RECOVERED COSTS 43,761              5,496                -                     5,889                8,179                

TRANSFERS FROM BEDFORD COUNTY 163,055            172,714            -                     163,055            163,055            

TOTAL EDA REVENUES 918,750            806,463            645,585              850,206            862,097            

EDA EXPENDITURES

ADMINISTRATION 232,900            58,356              92,768                216,563            223,249            

PERFORMANCE INCENTIVES 55,000              -                   30,000                120,000            120,000            

BEDFORD CENTER FOR BUSINESS 65,502              62,517              46,462                93,600              68,000              

BEDFORD BREWERY 43,818              43,818              32,864                43,818              43,819              

MONTVALE CENTER FOR COMMERCE 2,855                6,170                -                     1,600                1,600                

WASHINGTON STREET 3,893                2,721                230,690              209,000            7,800                

NEW LONDON BUSINESS & TECH CENTER 1,432,067         214,280            270,255              311,236            190,134            

TOTAL EDA EXPENDITURES 1,836,035         387,862            703,039              995,817            654,602            

NET NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (917,285)          418,601            (57,454)               (145,611)          207,495            

556 EDA SUMMARY



FY 22 FY 23 YTD FY24 FY 25

DESCRIPTION ACTUAL ACTUAL AS OF 3/31/24 BUDGET PROPOSED

561500 415101 INTEREST ON BANK DEPOSITS     4,088                4,428                3,189                  -                    1,350                

561500 415103 INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS -                    -                    12,643                -                    72,000              

561500 415210 BRWA CELL TOWER INCOME        16,235              15,918              11,939                15,918              15,918              

USE OF MONEY/PROPERTY TOTAL 20,323              20,346              27,771                15,918              89,268              

561800 418901 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE         46,517              2,857                69,840                -                    -                    

561800 418901 BBRDG     BURNBRIDGE - MISC REVENUE     117,450            -                    -                      -                    -                    

MISCELLANEOUS TOTAL 163,967            2,857                69,840                -                    -                    

561900 419010 BBRDG     RECOVERED COSTS-BURNBRIDGE    39,710              -                    -                      -                    -                    

RECOVERED COSTS TOTAL 39,710              -                    -                      -                    -                    

564100 441110 TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FD      43,055              43,055              -                      43,055              43,055              

564100 441133 TRANSFER FROM CIP             -                    9,659                -                      -                    -                    

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES TOTAL 43,055              52,714              -                      43,055              43,055              

TOTAL REVENUES 267,055            75,917              97,611                58,973              132,323            

565600 531110 ACCOUNTING & AUDITING SERVICES 6,900                15,450              17,660                10,000              8,400                

565600 531120 ADVERTISING SERVICES          2,386                9,846                7,691                  6,500                10,000              

565600 531130 ATTORNEY AND LEGAL SERVICES   -                    -                    132                      2,500                2,500                

565600 531220 SKILLED SERVICES              2,506                -                    -                    -                    

565600 531220 SAL ADMIN SALARY -SKILLED SERVICES -                    4,429                14,301                23,000              28,319              

565600 531410 BUILDING REPAIR & MAINT SVCS  -                    -                    46,331                150,000            150,000            

565600 531410 CVCC      BUILDING REPAIR & MAINT SVCS  -                    3,917                2,376                  -                    -                    

565600 531420 GROUNDS REPAIR & MAINT SVCS   1,065                390                   -                      -                    -                    

565600 531510 POSTAGE AND FREIGHT           4                       -                    -                      120                   -                    

565600 531730 CONFERENCE & EDUCATION        285                   898                   500                      1,500                1,000                

565600 531750 EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION          -                    -                    -                      100                   -                    

565600 531820 TRAVEL MILEAGE                897                   1,743                966                      1,500                1,500                

PURCHASED SERVICES TOTAL 14,043              36,673              89,957                195,220            201,719            

565600 541270 CONTRIBUTIONS TO CULTURAL ORGS -                    500                   -                      -                    -                    

CLAIMS & CONTRIBUTIONS TOTAL -                    500                   -                      -                    -                    

565600 551130 BBRDG     BURNBRIDGE - WATER & SEWER CHG 196,730            -                    -                      -                    -                    

565600 551210 GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE   653                   654                   -                      654                   641                   

565600 551220 AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY INSURANCE 150                   150                   -                      150                   147                   

565600 551230 PROPERTY INSURANCE            9,724                10,018              -                      10,018              10,291              

565600 551240 BOILER AND MACHINERY INSURANCE 1,170                1,264                -                      1,264                1,212                

565600 551250 OTHER FINANCIAL INSURANCES    675                   675                   -                      675                   662                   

565600 551260 PUBLIC OFFICIALS INSURANCE    182                   182                   -                      182                   179                   

565600 551290 CYBER RISK INSURANCE          100                   100                   -                      100                   98                     

REOCCURING CHARGES TOTAL 209,384            13,043              -                      13,043              13,230              

565600 561120 OFFICE SUPPLIES               -                    -                    -                      500                   -                    

565600 561140 FOOD & MEALS NON-TRAVEL       2,525                2,229                1,549                  2,300                2,300                

565600 561140 BDONE     BDONE-FOOD MEALS NON TRAVEL   31                     1,926                1,262                  3,000                3,500                

565600 561140 BSAPP     BSAPP-FOOD MEALS NON TRAVEL   1,350                2,485                -                      2,500                2,500                

565600 561150 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES        48                     -                    -                      -                    -                    

565600 561150 BDONE     BD ONE - MISC SUPPLIES        70                     -                    -                      -                    -                    

565600 561540 CUSTODIAL MATERIALS           9                       -                    -                      -                    -                    

SUPPLIES & MATERIALS TOTAL 4,033                6,640                2,811                  8,300                8,300                

565600 581680 CVCC      CVCC-OTHER MINOR EQUIPMENT    -                    1,500                -                      -                    -                    

565600 582150 BBRDG     BBRDG - UTILITY LINES         5,440                -                    -                      -                    -                    

EQUIPMENT TOTAL 5,440                1,500                -                      -                    -                    

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 232,900            58,356              92,768                216,563            223,249            

NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 34,155              17,561              4,843                  (157,590)           (90,926)             

565600 - EDA ADMINISTRATION

ACCOUNT

REVENUES

EXPENDITURES



FY 22 FY 23 YTD FY24 FY 25

DESCRIPTION ACTUAL ACTUAL AS OF 3/31/24 BUDGET PROPOSED

564100 441110 TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FD      120,000            120,000            -                      120,000            120,000            

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES TOTAL 120,000            120,000            -                      120,000            120,000            

TOTAL REVENUES 120,000            120,000            -                      120,000            120,000            

565610 541530 PERFORMANCE INCENTIVES        55,000              -                    30,000                120,000            90,000              

565610 541530 NEW CHILDCARE GRANT PROGRAM -                    -                    -                      -                    30,000              

PERFORMANCE INCENTIVES TOTAL 55,000              -                    30,000                120,000            120,000            

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 55,000              -                    30,000                120,000            120,000            

NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 65,000              120,000            (30,000)               -                    -                    

565610 - EDA PERFORMANCE INCENTIVES

ACCOUNT

REVENUES

EXPENDITURES



FY 22 FY 23 YTD FY24 FY 25

DESCRIPTION ACTUAL ACTUAL AS OF 3/31/24 BUDGET PROPOSED

56561515 415201 CVCC      PROPERTY RENTALS-CVCC         142,296            142,296            142,296              142,296            142,296            

56561515 415201 ECOST     PROPERTY RENTALS-EAST COAST   121,280            121,280            90,960                121,280            121,280            

56561515 415201 MBC       PROPERTY RENTALS-MBC          2,700                4,500                2,700                  3,600                3,600                

USE OF MONEY/PROPERTY TOTAL 266,276            268,076            235,956              267,176            267,176            

TOTAL REVENUES 266,276            268,076            235,956              267,176            267,176            

565615 531120 ADVERTISING SVCS 1,235                -                    -                      -                    -                    

565615 531410 BUILDING REPAIR & MAINT SVCS  -                    -                    476                      9,500                1,000                

565615 531410 CVCC      CVCC-BLDG REPAIR & MAINT SVCS 5,326                5,576                1,092                  -                    5,000                

565615 531410 ECOST     ECOAST-BLDG REP & MAINT SVCS  36                     80                     -                      -                    -                    

565615 531420 GROUNDS REPAIR & MAINT SVCS   6,983                6,725                2,553                  8,900                7,000                

565615 531420 CVCC      GROUNDS REPAIR & MAINT SVCS   -                    430                   2,918                  -                    3,000                

565615 531430 EQUIPMENT REPAIR & MAINT SVCS -                    1,536                -                      -                    -                    

565615 531430 CVCC      CVCC - EQUIP REP& MAINT SVCS  10,005              7,272                8,944                  31,200              10,000              

565615 531430 ECOST     ECOST - EQUIP REP & MAINT SVCS 2,010                -                    875                      2,000                2,000                

565615 531510 CVCC      POSTAGE AND FREIGHT           -                    15                     -                      -                    -                    

PURCHASED SERVICES TOTAL 25,595              21,634              16,858                51,600              28,000              

565615 551110 ELECTRICAL SERVICE CHARGES    -                    13,209              -                      -                    -                    

565615 551110 CVCC      CVCC-ELECTRICAL SVC CHARGES   38,183              25,366              27,729                40,000              38,000              

565615 551130 CVCC      CVCC-WATER & SEWER CHARGES    1,399                1,868                1,443                  2,000                2,000                

565615 551170 OTHER SERVICE CHARGES         103                   400                   78                        -                    -                    

REOCCURING CHARGES TOTAL 39,685              40,843              29,250                42,000              40,000              

565615 561510 CVCC      CVCC-BUILDING MATERIALS       222                   40                     354                      -                    -                    

SUPPLIES & MATERIALS TOTAL 222                   40                     354                      -                    -                    

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 65,502              62,517              46,462                93,600              68,000              

NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 200,774            205,559            189,494              173,576            199,176            

565615 - BEDFORD CENTER FOR BUSINESS

ACCOUNT

EXPENDITURES

REVENUES



FY 22 FY 23 YTD FY24 FY 25

DESCRIPTION ACTUAL ACTUAL AS OF 3/31/24 BUDGET PROPOSED

56562115 415201 BREW      PROPERTY RENTALS-BREWERY      43,818              43,818              32,864                43,818              43,819              

USE OF MONEY/PROPERTY TOTAL 43,818              43,818              32,864                43,818              43,819              

TOTAL REVENUES 43,818              43,818              32,864                43,818              43,819              

565621 591130 VCC       VCC-DEBT PRINCIPAL            12,431              12,335              9,462                  13,035              14,290              

565621 591140 VCC       VCC-DEBT INTEREST             31,387              31,483              23,402                30,783              29,529              

BONDS & TRANSFERS TOTAL 43,818              43,818              32,864                43,818              43,819              

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 43,818              43,818              32,864                43,818              43,819              

NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) -                    -                    -                      -                    -                    

565621 - BEDFORD BREWERY

ACCOUNT

REVENUES

EXPENDITURES



FY 22 FY 23 YTD FY24 FY 25

DESCRIPTION ACTUAL ACTUAL AS OF 3/31/24 BUDGET PROPOSED

TOTAL REVENUES -                   -                   -                     -                   -                   

565655 531120 ADVERTISING SVCS 1,270                -                   -                   -                   -                   

565655 531210 A&E SVCS -                   5,000                -                   -                   -                   

565655 531420 GROUNDS REPAIR & MAINT SVCS   1,585                1,170                -                     1,600                1,600                

PURCHASED SERVICES TOTAL 2,855                6,170                -                     1,600                1,600                

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,855                6,170                -                     1,600                1,600                

NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (2,855)              (6,170)              -                     (1,600)              (1,600)              

565655 - MONTVALE CENTER FOR COMMERCE

ACCOUNT

REVENUES

EXPENDITURES



FY 22 FY 23 YTD FY24 FY 25

DESCRIPTION ACTUAL ACTUAL AS OF 3/31/24 BUDGET PROPOSED

56568015 415201 PROPERTY RENTALS              22,550              33,150              20,400                30,600              30,600              

USE OF MONEY/PROPERTY TOTAL 22,550              33,150              20,400                30,600              30,600              

TOTAL REVENUES 22,550              33,150              20,400                30,600              30,600              

565680 531210 A & E SERVICES                1,500                -                   -                     -                   -                   

565680 531220 SKILLED SERVICES              -                   150                  -                     -                   -                   

565680 531410 BUILDING REPAIR & MAINT SVCS  1,178                392                  725                     7,500                5,000                

565680 531420 GROUNDS REPAIR & MAINT SVCS   487                  1,460                1,076                  1,500                1,500                

565680 531430 EQUIPMENT REPAIR & MAINT SVCS 286                  -                   -                     -                   -                   

PURCHASED SERVICES TOTAL 3,451                2,002                1,801                  9,000                6,500                

565680 541610 REAL PROPERTY TAXES           389                  280                  -                     -                   300                  

CLAIMS & CONTRIBUTIONS TOTAL 389                  280                  -                     -                   300                  

565680 551170 OTHER SERVICE CHARGES         19                    -                   -                     -                   -                   

REOCCURING CHARGES TOTAL 19                    -                   -                     -                   -                   

565680 561510 BUILDING MATERIALS            -                   53                    -                     -                   1,000                

565680 561510 VISTA     VISTA-BUILDING MATERIALS      -                   386                  2,197                  -                   -                   

565680 561520 GROUNDS MATERIALS             34                    -                   -                     -                   -                   

SUPPLIES & MATERIALS TOTAL 34                    439                  2,197                  -                   1,000                

565680 582141 SITE IMPROV-PARKING LOTS/PAVIN -                   -                   226,692              200,000            -                   

EQUIPMENT TOTAL -                   -                   226,692              200,000            -                   

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,893                2,721                230,690              209,000            7,800                

NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 18,657              30,429              (210,290)             (178,400)          22,800              

565680 - WASHINGTON STREET

ACCOUNT

REVENUES

EXPENDITURES



FY 22 FY 23 YTD FY24 FY 25

DESCRIPTION ACTUAL ACTUAL AS OF 3/31/24 BUDGET PROPOSED

56568515 415201 BLVAC PROPERTY RENTALS - BELVAC     195,000            260,006            195,004              260,000            260,000            

56568524 425210 NLPH2 NL PHASE 2-STATE GRANT REVENUE -                    -                    63,750                63,750              -                    

USE OF MONEY/PROPERTY TOTAL 195,000            260,006            258,754              323,750            260,000            

561900 419010 BLVAC RECOVERED COSTS - BELVAC      -                    1,448                -                      1,448                2,011                

561900 419010 DMPRE RECOVERED COSTS - DAMAGE PREVE -                    390                   -                      390                   542                   

561900 419010 LU        RECOVERED COSTS - LIBERTY UNIV 2,597                2,597                -                      2,597                3,606                

561900 419010 NANO      RECOVERED COSTS - NANOTOUCH   393                   -                    -                      393                   546                   

561900 419010 SMPLM SMPLM -RECOVERED COSTS - OTHER 1,061                1,061                -                      1,061                1,473                

RECOVERED COSTS TOTAL 4,051                5,496                -                      5,889                8,179                

TOTAL REVENUES 199,051            265,502            258,754              329,639            268,179            

565685 531120 ADVERTISING SERVICES          2,079                18                     -                      -                    -                    

565685 531140 LOT7 SHELL BLDG - OTH PROF SERVICES 32,500              -                    -                      -                    -                    

565685 531210 A & E SERVICES                1,580                2,010                1,220                  -                    1,500                

565685 531210 NLPH2 NLPH2-A & E SERVICES          -                    -                    127,500              127,500            -                    

565685 531220 SKILLED SERVICES              1,360                2,750                -                      -                    -                    

565685 531410 BUILDING REPAIR & MAINT SVCS  -                    2,326                514                      3,102                3,000                

565685 531420 GROUNDS REPAIR & MAINT SVCS   19,783              19,260              19,433                20,000              25,000              

565685 531430 BLVAC EQUIPMENT REPAIR & MAINT-BLVAC -                    550                   -                      -                    -                    

PURCHASED SERVICES TOTAL 57,302              26,914              148,667              150,602            29,500              

565685 551110 ELECTRICAL SERVICE CHARGES    6,713                7,305                4,770                  7,100                7,100                

565685 551150 LOT7 SHELL BUILDING LOAN -BANK FEES 194                   -                    -                      -                    -                    

565685 551170 OTHER SERVICE CHARGES         8                       61                     44                        -                    -                    

REOCCURING CHARGES TOTAL 6,915                7,366                4,814                  7,100                7,100                

565685 582130 LOT7 SHELL - BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS 1,315,214         -                    -                      -                    -                    

565685 582140 SITE IMPROVEMENTS             756                   -                    1,624                  -                    -                    

565685 582160 MEADE MEADE-ROADS                   1,162                26,466              -                      -                    -                    

EQUIPMENT TOTAL 1,317,132         26,466              1,624                  -                    -                    

565685 591120 LOT7 LOT7 - DEBT SERVICE FEES      514                   -                    -                      -                    -                    

565685 591130 LOT7 SHELL BLDG - DEBT PRINCIPAL   8,343                104,079            78,852                105,420            108,528            

565685 591140 LOT7 SHELL BLDG - DEBT INTEREST    41,861              49,455              36,298                48,114              45,006              

BONDS & TRANSFERS TOTAL 50,718              153,534            115,150              153,534            153,534            

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,432,067         214,280            270,255              311,236            190,134            

NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (1,233,016)        51,222              (11,501)               18,403              78,045              

565685 - NEW LONDON CENTER FOR BUSINESS & TECHNOLOGY

ACCOUNT

REVENUES

EXPENDITURES



 

 

 
 

BEDFORD COUNTY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
Agenda Item Summary 

                

AGENDA ITEM # 10B  

MEETING DATE: May 2, 2024 

MEETING TYPE: Regular Meeting 

ITEM TITLE: Adoption of an EDA Bond Issuance Application, Rules, and Procedures 
                

SUMMARY 

 
In a closed session at the February 2024 EDA meeting, TW Bruno, a Partner with McGuire Woods, presented a 
bond financing program for consideration as a tool to provide financing assistance to qualified businesses wishing to 
make an investment in Bedford County. 

Eligible projects include headquarters and facilities for 501(c)(3) organizations, medical facilities, public school 
facilities and higher education, parking facilities, pollution control facilities and small manufacturing facilities. 

Per policy and procedure guidelines, projects will be considered on a case-by-case basis. The EDA will charge a 
$5,000 application fee, as well as administrative fees to be paid at the time of closing. The EDA pays not costs, taxes, 
etc.; and the applicant pays all expenses associated with the financing. 

See attachment for rules and procedures; fee schedule; form blanket waiver and indemnity; and application form. 

 

 

 



 
 
 

At a regular meeting of the Economic Development Authority of the County of Bedford, Virginia held at 
the Bedford County Administration Building on the 2nd day of May 2024 beginning at 5:30 pm: 
MEMBERS:      VOTE: 
Wyatt Walton, Chairman 
Matthew Braud, Vice-Chairman 
Vicki Gardner 
Jim Messier       
Kristy Milton 
James T. Robertson 
David Wells       
        

 
On motion of                         ,  which carried by a vote of   , the following was adopted: 

 

A RESOLUTION 

ADOPTION OF AN EDA BOND ISSUANCE RULES AND PROCEDURES 

 

 WHEREAS, the Economic Development Authority (EDA)of the County of Bedford, Virginia 

(the "Authority"), has been presented with draft rules and procedures regarding the issuance of bonds along 

with a presentation from staff and counsel; and, 

 WHEREAS, eligible projects include headquarters and facilities for 501(c)(3) organizations, 

medical facilities, public school facilities and higher education, parking facilities, pollution control facilities; 

and small manufacturing facilities; and, 

 WHEREAS, each project will be considered on a case-by-case basis,  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Bedford County Economic Development 

Authority hereby adopts the rules and procedures presented at its May 2, 2024, meeting. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the resolution shall be effective upon its adoption. 

       A Copy-Test: 

       _____________________________ 

       Wyatt H. Walton 

        EDA Chairman  



 

 
184020988_4.docx 
 

 
 

ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT  

AUTHORITY  
OF THE  

COUNTY OF BEDFORD, VIRGINIA 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BOND FINANCING  
PROGRAM 

 
 
 
 

Pam Armstrong 
Director of Economic Development 

Office of Economic Development 
122 East Main Street, Suite 202 
Bedford County, Virginia 24523 

 
540-587-5670 

 
ADOPTED __________ _____, 2024 



 

 
 

ABOUT THE EDA 
 
The Economic Development Authority of the County of Bedford, Virginia (EDA) provides 
financing assistance to qualified businesses and organizations wishing to make an 
investment within the County of Bedford. A seven-member body appointed by the Board 
of Supervisors for staggered four-year terms, the EDA was created by ordinance of the 
Board of Supervisors according to the Industrial Development and Revenue Bond Act 
(Chapter 49, Section 15.2 of the Code of Virginia). The EDA acts as a conduit, issuing 
bonds and lending proceeds to 501(c)(3) organizations, small manufacturers and others. 
The financial markets set interest rates on such bonds below comparable rates for taxable 
financings because bondholders can exclude interest on the bonds from their gross income. 
 
The EDA's bond financing program is a proven success in enabling non-profit 
organizations to purchase real estate and construct and equip facilities in the County. 
Applicants include some of the most active corporate organizations in the County and 
generate significant tax revenues and jobs within Bedford. The EDA works closely with 
the County's Economic Development Department to promote the bond financing program, 
and all income generated by the EDA is dedicated to new and ongoing economic 
development efforts. 
 

ELIGIBLE PROJECTS 
 
Under applicable federal and Virginia law, a variety of projects can be financed with bonds 
issued by the EDA including the following:  
 

Headquarters and other facilities for 501(c)(3) organizations  
Medical facilities 
Elementary and secondary school facilities 
Pollution control facilities 
Higher education facilities  
Parking facilities 
Small manufacturing facilities 

 
Working capital and certain interest payments on tax-exempt bonds often may also be 
included in the financing. It should be noted, however, that no portion of the proceeds of 
tax-exempt bonds may be used to provide any airplane, skybox or other private luxury box, 
facility primarily used for gambling, or store the principal business of which is the sale of 
alcoholic beverages for consumption off premises. In addition, proceeds of tax-exempt 
bonds issued for the benefit of non-profit 501(c)(3) organizations are typically not 
permitted in connection with a trade or business unrelated to the 501(c)(3) organization's 
exempt purpose. Certain other federal and state restrictions may apply in determining 
whether a particular project is eligible for financing through the EDA.  
 
Under federal tax law, the refinancing of tax-exempt debt is generally possible if the 
proceeds of the new tax-exempt debt are used immediately to pay off the old tax-exempt 
debt and certain other limitations are met.  



 

2 
 

 
MINIMUM SIZE OF A TAX-EXEMPT FINANCING 

 
While the law imposes no minimum size on tax-exempt financings, the complexities 
involved in structuring and obtaining approvals for such financings can result in transaction 
costs which are higher than those for comparable taxable financings. These transaction 
costs may make it prohibitive to undertake financings of less than a certain size, since the 
advantage to the borrower of lower interest rates would be offset by the increased 
transaction costs. Generally, a bond financing is most efficient when the size of the 
financing is at least $1-$2 million. To reduce these higher transaction costs, it is often 
possible to combine present projects with projects to be financed within the next few years 
or to combine financings for an exempt organization and its affiliates in a single issue. 
 

FINANCING ALTERNATIVES 
 
The same options available to a borrower in a taxable financing may be used in structuring 
a tax-exempt financing. Interest rates may be fixed or variable repayment schedules can be 
arranged to meet the cash flow needs of the applicant. Ratings or various forms of credit 
enhancement may be employed to improve the interest rate. Issues relating to credit and 
security must also be considered in structuring the financing. For publicly sold bond issues, 
an underwriter is engaged to ensure that each of these matters is addressed in a way that 
will accommodate the exempt organization's desire to minimize its debt service and the 
constraints imposed by the financing while addressing bondholders' concerns with payment 
and security. 
 
Bank Qualification. In general, banks and other financial institutions cannot purchase and 
hold tax-exempt bonds at an effective interest rate because their carrying costs allocable to 
those investments are not deductible. Under an exception to the general rule, banks may 
deduct 80% of their carrying costs allocable to "bank-qualified" tax-exempt obligations, 
which are subject to eligibility restrictions and dollar amount limitations. The advantages 
of bank-qualified debt are many. Bank qualified bonds generally carry a lower net interest 
cost than other tax-exempt obligations, issuance costs are generally lower than for publicly 
sold debt and such bonds can typically be issued more quickly than publicly sold debt.   
 

HOW TO APPLY 
 
As early as possible in the planning of the project, the applicant should contact the EDA 
for specific information on procedural considerations and to determine the information the 
EDA will need to evaluate the request. The Internal Revenue Code requirements to 
preserve the tax exempt status of the interest on the bonds are complex, and it is essential 
that applicants consult with legal counsel knowledgeable in the area of industrial 



 

3 
 

development revenue bonds prior to submitting an application to the EDA. At this stage, it 
is also necessary for the applicant to approach potential lenders on a preliminary basis. 
 

POLICY & PROCEDURAL GUIDELINES 
 
The EDA has established the following policy and procedural guidelines governing its 
consideration of industrial revenue bond applications: 
 

1. Projects will be considered for approval on a case-by-case basis. 
2. The EDA charges the applicant administrative fees. 
3. The EDA pays no costs, taxes, etc.; the applicant pays all expenses 

associated with the financing. 
 

EDA FEES 
 
The EDA administrative fees for a typical new money tax-exempt bond issue are: 
 

 Application fee of $5,000 
 Administrative Fee paid at closing of: 
  1% of first $5,000,000  
  plus ¾% of next $7,000,000 
  plus ½% of the amount over $12,000,000 

 
Different fees apply for refunding issues, taxable debt in conjunction with tax-exempt issues 
and other actions and approvals of the EDA. A complete schedule of fees is attached as 
Exhibit A. 
 
The EDA pays no costs, taxes, etc., and all legal fees and publication costs incurred by the 
EDA in processing the case or until the financing is abandoned are borne by the borrower.  
 
The EDA's Application Form is attached hereto as Exhibit C. 
 

GENERAL PROCEDURES 
 
A tax exempt bond financing through the EDA typically follows the steps below, although 
each financing is unique and the procedures may vary depending on the individual 
circumstances.  
 
1. Applicant decides to construct or renovate a facility within the County of Bedford (the 

"Project"). 
 
2. Applicant consults with Bond Counsel who determines that the Project qualifies for 

financing under federal and state laws and that the interest on the Bonds will be exempt 
from state and federal income tax. 

 
3. Applicant obtains a commitment to purchase or place the bonds from a bank or 

investment banking firm which structures credit requirements (collateral, insurance, 



 

4 
 

ratings etc.) 
 
4. Applicant completes and files an application requesting the EDA to issue its bonds in an 

amount estimated to cover the eligible costs of the Project. The Application Form is 
attached as Exhibit C.  

 
5. A notice of public hearing is published. 
 
6. The EDA holds a public hearing on the Project and, if the application is in order, adopts 

a resolution approving the application. 
 
7. The Board of Supervisors meets and adopts a resolution approving the bond issue. Bond 

Counsel prepares bond documents and a final resolution authorizing the issuance of the 
bonds. The final resolution and bond documents are reviewed by all parties to the 
transaction and revised documents are circulated. All documents are finalized.  

 
8. Financing documents are prepared and a final resolution authorizing the issuance of the 

bonds is adopted by the EDA. 
 
9. All parties meet to execute the bond documents and close the bond issue. At closing, the 

bond proceeds are deposited in a special account to be requisitioned by the borrower to 
pay for costs of the Project. 

 
NOTE: The Applicant agrees to make all payments of principal and interest on the bonds, 
and the EDA has no obligation to make payments on the bonds or to pay costs of the Project. 
 

FOR MORE INFORMATION 
 
 
Contact: 

T.W. Bruno 
Bond Counsel to the EDA 
McGuireWoods LLP 
800 East Canal Street 
Richmond, Virginia 23219 
804.775.1853 
tbruno@mcguirewoods.com 

Pam Armstrong 
Director of Economic Development 
Bedford County Administration 
122 East Main Street, Suite 202 
Bedford County, Virginia 24523 
540.587.5670 ext. 1 
parmstrong@bedfordcountyva.gov 
 

 



 

 
 

EXHIBITS 
 

A. FEE SCHEDULE; 
 

B. FORM BLANKET WAIVER AND INDEMNITY; 
 

C. APPLICATION FORM; 
 

D. FISCAL IMPACT STATEMENT; AND 
 

E. EDA RULES AND PROCEDURES 



 

 
 

A. FEE SCHEDULE 
 

Economic Development Authority of the County of Bedford, Virginia 
Standard Proposed Terms and Conditions for Revenue Bonds 

 
1.   New Money Issuance 

 Application Fee 
 Administrative Fee (due at closing): 

1% of 1st $5M + 
 ¾% of next $7M + 
 ½% of all higher $ amounts 
 All costs 
 Blanket Waiver and Indemnity (Form 

attached as Exhibit B) 
 

 
$5,000 + 
 
$50,000 + 
$52,500 
(additive) 

2.   Refunding Issuance 
 Application Fee 
 Administrative Fee (due at closing): 

15% of New Money fee above, not 
including New Money application fee 

 All costs 
 Blanket Waiver and Indemnity  

 

 
$2,500 + 
(see above) 
 
 

3.   Taxable New Money Issuance or Taxable 
Refunding Issuance (in Conjunction with Tax-
Exempt Issuance) 

 Application Fee  
 Administrative Fee (due at closing): 

25% of New Money fee or Refunding 
fee above, as applicable, not including 
application fee 

 All costs 
 Blanket Waiver and Indemnity 
 

 
 
 
No additional application fee 
(see above)  

4.   Other Actions and Approvals involving 
financings/other issuances (including other 
EDAs) 

 Application Fee 
 Same Administrative Fee as New 

Money or Refunding, as applicable 
(due at closing) 

 All costs 
 Blanket Waiver and Indemnity 

 

 
 
 
$2,500 + 
(see above) 
 

  



 

2 
 

5.   Ministerial/Legal actions not involving 
any issuance or financing, however 
defined 

 Application Fee 
 All costs 
 Blanket Waiver and Indemnity 
 Discretionary fee – waiver for  
   non-EDA government entities,      
   except where effect of action  
   equates to New Money or  
   Refunding 
 

 
 
 
$2,500 
 
 

6.   Bedford County Bonds No fees charged if application materials 
received 45 days prior to EDA meeting; 
Upon shorter notice, EDA may request 
the County pay an Expedited Service Fee 
in an amount to be determined at the time 
of submission 

  
7.   The EDA may, it its sole discretion,  
    adjust or waive revenue bond fees at  
    any time, or from time to time, on a  
    case-by-case basis. 

 

 



 

 
 

B. FORM BLANKET WAIVER AND INDEMNITY 
 
[Entity] having had the opportunity for full diligence and consultation with [Entity]'s own 
legal counsel, and, for consideration of unquantifiable value to [Entity] so as to induce the 
Authority to take the actions provided for in the Resolution, [Entity] hereby agrees and 
covenants as follows: 
 

1. [Entity] now and forever waives any claim against the Authority, its 
directors, officers, members, and agents, and the County of Bedford, its 
officials, employees, and agents (each, for the purposes of this provision 
and the next, "Bedford"), with respect to every direct and indirect actual, 
potential, and contingent liability, claim, charge, award, and judgment 
(each, for the purposes of this provision and the next, a "Claim") arising out 
of or related to the subject-matter of this resolution; and 

 
2. [Entity] hereby promises, agrees, warrants, and covenants to fully and 

absolutely defend and indemnify Bedford against any Claim arising out of 
or related to the subject-matter of this resolution. 

 
For the purposes of the foregoing provision, [Entity] includes – and expressly so binds – 
all of [Entity]'s members, owners, creditors, partners, agents, administrators, heirs, 
successors, assigns, employees, trustees, receivers, escheators, subrogors and subrogees, 
howsoever they may appear. 
 



 

 
 

C. APPLICATION FORM 
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF 
THE COUNTY OF BEDFORD, VIRGINIA 

 
APPLICATION STATEMENT 

 
1. Applicant 
 

a. Legal name of applicant and state of incorporation or formation: 
 
 
 

b. Address and location of principal office: 
 
 
 

c. Telephone and telecopy numbers: 
 
 
 

d. Names and addresses of officers or partners: 
 
 
 

e. To whom correspondence should be directed: 
 
 
 

f. Name and address of counsel for applicant: 
 
 
 

g. Indicate name, state of incorporation and relationship of all direct or indirect parent 
companies of applicant. 

 
 
 
2. Statement of benefits to the County of Bedford and the Commonwealth of Virginia from 

the project 
 
 
 



 

2 

3. Identification and description of proposed project 
 

a. General location of proposed project in the County of Bedford. 
 
 

b. Describe the types of facility which you are applying for financing. What 
manufacturing or other processes will be conducted at the project? 

 
 

c. Describe the proposed arrangement to finance the cost of construction or 
acquisition of the project. Briefly detail a projected time schedule. 

 
 

d. If the Applicant now owns the project site, indicate: 
 

(1) date of purchase 
 
 

(2) purchase price 
 
 

(3) balance of existing mortgage 
 
 

(4) holder or mortgage 
 
 

e. If the Applicant is not now the owner of the project site, does the Applicant have 
an option to purchase the site and any buildings on the site? If yes, indicate: 

 
(1) date option agreement signed with owner 

 
 

(2) purchase price under option 
 
 

(3) expiration date of option 
 
 

f. Has the Applicant entered into a contract to purchase the site? If yes, indicate: 
 
 (1) date signed 
 
 

(2) purchase price 
 



 

3 

(3) settlement date 
 
 

g. Present owner of the site of the project, and the relationship between the present 
legal owner and the applicant: 

 
 

h. Status of plans for the Project. Please indicate architect, engineer, general 
contractor and major subcontractors. 

 
 

i. Has construction work on this project begun? If yes, please indicate what work has 
been done to date. 

 
 

j. List principal items or categories of equipment to be acquired as part of the project: 
 
 

k. Has any of the above equipment been ordered or purchased? If yes, indicate: 
 
 

l. State the proposed estimated uses of bond proceeds: 
 

Description of Cost Estimated 
Amount ($) 

  
Land  
Building  
Equipment  
Engineering  
Architecture  
Interest (capitalized)   
Bond discount and cost of finance  

 
Face amount of issue  

 
 

m. Have any of the above expenditures already been made by the Applicant? If yes, 
indicate particulars: 

 
 

n. Have any of the above expenditures been incurred but not paid by the Applicant? 
If yes, indicate particulars: 

 
 



 

4 

o. Are costs of working capital, moving expenses, work in process, or stock in trade 
included in the proposed uses of bond proceeds? 

 
 

p. Will any of the funds to be borrowed through the Authority be used to repay or 
refinance an existing mortgage or outstanding loan? 

 
 

q. If any space in the project is to be leased to third parties, indicate total square 
footage of the project, amount to be leased to each tenant, and proposed use by each 
tenant. 

 
 

r. Type and amount of outstanding bonds. State the type and amount of outstanding 
bonds or other obligations, if any, on the present facilities or any other facilities of 
the Applicant. Include the amount of annual payments required and the year when 
the bonds will be paid off. 

 
 

s. Brief description of Applicant's existing facilities, if any. Indicate if the existing 
facilities are to be abandoned or will continue in use. 

 
 

t. Will the construction, occupation or use of the project involve the creation of any 
pollutants or other emissions, or the use or manufacture of any toxic or hazardous 
substances? Will operation of the project involve consumption or use of large 
amounts of electricity, water, gas or other services as products customarily 
furnished by utilities? Will construction or operation of the project have any impact 
upon local businesses or residents, such as emission of odors, traffic in and out of 
the project, or storage of large amounts of materials at the project site? Please 
provide particulars. 

 
 
4.  Financial 
 

a. Future financing plans other than this project: 
 
 

b. Description of present debt, guaranty, long term contracts, prior liens, and other 
contingent liabilities: 

 
 

c. Proposed immediate and long term capital expenditures: 
 
 
 



 

5 

d. Commercial banking connections and for how long a period: 
 
 

e. Attach to Application the following financial statements for each of the preceding 
three (3) years. 

 
(1) Statement of financial condition. 

 
(2) Profit and Loss statement. 

 
(3) Statement of surplus. 

 
If the Applicant is a new or recently formed business entity, without recent financial statements, 
the Applicant should furnish the financial information required by the Application for each 
principal shareholder, partner or other principal of the Applicant. If the Applicant is a subsidiary 
corporation without its own financial statements, financial statements of the parent corporation or 
consolidated financial statements may be submitted in lieu of financial statements for the 
Applicant. If the obligations of the Applicant will be guaranteed by any person or business entity, 
then financial statements of such guarantor should also be included with the Application. Pro forma 
financial statements, if available, should be submitted with the Application. Since this Application 
will become a part of the public records of the Authority, in the event the Applicant does not desire 
financial records not otherwise available to the public to be included in the public record please so 
indicate so such records may be returned to the Applicant. 
 

f. Has the Applicant, any proposed guarantor, or any of their principal partners or 
shareholders ever declared bankruptcy or been involved in any bankruptcy or 
insolvency proceeding whether voluntary or involuntary? If so, describe 
particulars. 

 
 

g. Has any underwriter, broker or investment banker been retained by Applicant in 
connection with this proposed bond issue? If so, who? 

 
 

h. Please indicate the person or institution to whom the bonds will be sold or any 
persons or institutions which have indicated an interest in purchasing the bonds. 

 
 
5. Miscellaneous 
 

a. Is the Applicant or any major shareholder or partner presently involved in any 
litigation, investigation or proceeding? If so, please describe. 

 
 
 



 

6 

b. Is the Applicant or any major shareholder or partner of the Applicant, or any other 
person working for the Applicant in this proposed financing subject to any order, 
decree or judgment of any court or administrative or other governmental agency or 
body? If so, please describe. 

 
 

c. Is the Applicant, or any of its shareholders or partners, or any guarantor, or any 
other person representing Applicant in connection with this proposed financing, 
involved in any investigation, litigation or proceeding relating to the issuance or 
sale of securities or any applicable banking laws or regulations? Have any of the 
foregoing persons ever been involved in any such investigation, litigation or 
proceeding? If so, please describe in full. 

 
 

d. Is the Applicant subject to regulation (other than in the ordinary course of business) 
by any Federal or State administrative agencies or bodies? If so, please provide 
details. 

 
e. Please complete and sign the Applicant's Estoppel Certificate and Agreement on 

the following page. 
 
 
  



 

7 

6. Agreement to Pay Authority's Cost and Expenses and Estoppel Certificate 
 

To induce the Economic Development Authority of the County of Bedford, Virginia to 
consider this Application and to adopt an inducement resolution agreeing to assist Applicant in the 
financing of the Project, Applicant, by submitting this Application to the Authority agrees: 
 

(1) To pay all fees, costs and expenses of the Authority, including any costs for 
publication of public hearing notices, and the fees and disbursements of the 
Authority's Counsel in connection with the authorization, issuance and sale of the 
bonds contemplated by this Application; 

 
(2) To comply with the Authority's Rules and Procedures, a copy of which has 
been received by the Applicant; and 

 
(3) To advise the Authority in writing of any material changes to the 
information contained in this Application. 

 
 

The Authority has relied on the representations of the Applicant contained in this 
Application and has not independently verified the information contained in this Application, 
including the financial records and the Fiscal Impact Statement accompanying this Application. 
The Authority makes no representation as to the accuracy of the information supplied by the 
Applicant or the creditworthiness of the Applicant. 
 
 

 
Legal Name of Applicant: __________________________________ 

 
 

Signature: _______________________________ 
Name: _______________________________ 
Title: _______________________________ 

 



 

8 

Notes to Application 
 

1. Applicants are referred to the Authority's Rules and Procedures for provisions 
governing the submission of this Application to the Authority. 
 

2. Applications and all exhibits should be submitted to each Director of the Authority, 
the Authority's Secretary and Counsel and the Director of Economic Development of the County 
of Bedford at least fourteen (14) days before the meeting at which the Application is to be 
considered. 
 

3. The appropriate application fee should be submitted to the Authority with the 
Application. 
 

4. Questions concerning the qualification of a project or certain expenses of industrial 
development revenue bond financing or other legal questions relating to the issuance of bonds 
should be directed to the Authority's Counsel. 
 
 
NOTICE TO APPLICANTS: 
 

The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, has imposed a number of restrictions on 
tax-exempt revenue bond financing, including a limitation on the volume of certain private activity 
revenue bonds issued within any jurisdiction and restrictions on financing the acquisition of land 
or existing buildings. Should your application receive favorable consideration, the adoption of any 
resolution by the Authority or the Board of Supervisors of the County of Bedford carries no 
assurance of or commitment for any allocation of private activity bond issue volume. By filing this 
application, you agree to assume the risk that the limited amount of permissible private activity 
revenue bond financings may not be available or allocated to your project. 
 
 
 



 

 

D. RULES AND PROCEDURES  
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF 
THE COUNTY OF BEDFORD, VIRGINIA 

 
Rules and Procedures 

 
ARTICLE I 

 
PURPOSE AND SCOPE 

 
Section 1.1 Purpose. These Rules shall govern the submission of Applications to 

the Authority, application and administrative fees, consideration of matters to be brought 
to the attention of the Authority relating to the authorization, issuance and sale of its Bonds, 
the adoption of Financing Documents, reports to be submitted to the Authority, and such 
other matters as are contained herein. 
 

Section 1.2 Scope. These Rules are supplementary to the Authority's Bylaws and 
the Act. In the event of any conflict between the Authority's Bylaws, the Act and these 
Rules, the provisions of the Bylaws and the Act shall prevail. 
 

ARTICLE II 
 

DEFINITIONS 
 

Section 2.1 Definitions. As used in these rules and procedures, the following terms 
shall have the meaning as set forth herein, unless the context clearly requires otherwise: 
 

"Act" shall mean the Industrial Development and Revenue Bond Act, Chapter 33, 
Title 15.1, Code of Virginia of 1950, as amended. 
 

"Applicant" shall mean any individual, person, firm, corporation, partnership or 
other entity applying for industrial development revenue bond financing, or for whose 
benefit the Authority has issued its Bonds, or who requests the Authority to take any action. 
 

"Application" shall mean the Authority's form application for industrial 
development revenue bond financing as in effect from time to time. 
 

"Authority" shall mean the Economic Development Authority of the County of 
Bedford, Virginia, a political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia. 

 
"Bonds" shall mean any notes, bonds and other obligations authorized to be issued 

by the Authority pursuant to the Act. 
 

"Code" shall mean the Code of Virginia of 1950, as amended. 
 



 

 

 
 

2 

"Financing Documents" shall mean any resolutions, instruments, documents, 
papers, elections, certificates or financing statements required to be adopted or authorized, 
executed and delivered by the Authority in connection with the authorization, issuance and 
sale of its Bonds. 
 

"IRC" shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1954, as amended. 
 

"Project" shall mean any land, improvements, machinery, equipment or property 
financed by the issuance and sale of the Authority's Bonds. 
 

"Rules" shall mean these Rules and Procedures of the Authority, as may be in effect 
from time to time. 
 

ARTICLE III 
 

GENERAL 
 

Section 3.1 Copies to be Provided Applicants. A copy of these rules and procedures 
shall be furnished by the Authority's Secretary to each prospective Applicant. 
 

Section 3.2 Compliance with Rules and Procedures. Each Applicant shall comply 
with these rules and procedures in the submission of its Application or any Financing 
Documents to the Authority and in requesting that the Authority take any action, including 
the adoption of Financing Documents. Failure to comply with these rules and procedures 
shall constitute sufficient reason for the Authority to refuse to consider any Application, 
Financing Documents or any other matter to be brought before the Authority by or on 
behalf of any Applicant. 
 

Section 3.3 Amendments. These rules and procedures may be changed from time 
to time by the Authority by the vote of a majority of its Directors present at any meeting 
of the Authority, provided notice of such change shall have been given to each Director 
before such meeting. These rules and procedures may, notwithstanding the foregoing, be 
amended without prior notice upon the affirmative vote of all Directors of the Authority. 
 

Section 3.4 Preparation and Distribution of Agenda and Minutes. 
 
(a) A preliminary agenda for the Authority's meetings shall be prepared and 

distributed by the Authority's Secretary no later than three days before the Authority's 
scheduled meeting date. When action is to be taken with reference to a Project or the 
issuance of Bonds, the agenda shall contain a description of the type, nature and location 
of the project, the name of the Applicant and the nature of the action to be taken by the 
Authority. The agenda may state that it is a preliminary agenda subject to change at or 
before the Authority's meeting. 
 



 

 

 
 

3 

(b) A copy of the agenda for the Authority's meeting shall be provided to 
the following: each officer and director of the Authority, and to each person, firm or 
organization which shall have submitted a written request to the Authority's Secretary that 
its name be placed on the mailing list for the agenda of the Authority's meetings, which 
request shall include the address of the person, firm or organization submitting a written 
request to receive such notice. Each person, firm or organization submitting a written 
request to receive copies of the Authority's agenda shall renew such request in writing 
every six months during the months of June and December for the next succeeding six 
month period. If any request is not so received, such name and address shall be deleted 
from the mailing list. 
 

(c) Preliminary drafts of the minutes of the Authority's meeting shall, as 
soon as practicable following the meeting, be mailed or delivered to each officer and 
director of the Authority and the Authority's counsel. Each preliminary copy of the minutes 
so distributed shall be marked to indicate that it is a preliminary draft subject to additions 
or corrections at the Authority's next meeting. The date of approval of the Authority's 
minutes shall appear at the foot of the last page of the minutes and shall, when approved, 
be signed by the Chairman and Secretary of the Authority. 
 

ARTICLE IV 
 

APPLICATION PROCEDURES, FEES AND REQUIREMENTS  
 

Section 4.1 Applications. Each Applicant shall submit a fully and accurately 
completed Application to each Director of the Authority, the Authority's Secretary and 
Counsel and the Director of Economic Development of the County of Bedford, at least 
fourteen (14) days before the Authority's meeting at which the Application is to be 
considered. Each Application shall include all requested exhibits. In the event all requested 
exhibits are not available or not to be made part of the public record, a statement of 
explanation will be attached to the Application. The Authority recommends that each 
Applicant seek the advice of the Director of Economic Development of the County of 
Bedford, Virginia or the Authority's Counsel respecting completion of the Application 
before submitting it to the Authority. 
 

Section 4.2 Application Fee; Administrative Fee. The Authority charges 
application fees and/or administrative fees for certain Bonds issued or assumed. The 
application fee is due and payable at the time of submission of an Application and the 
administrative fee is due and payable at closing. A schedule of the Authority's application 
and administrative fees and when such fees are due and payable may be obtained from the 
Authority's offices. 
 

Section 4.3 Costs and Expenses. The Authority requires reimbursement of its costs 
and expenses incurred in connection with the issuance and sale of its Bonds and by virtue 
of its Bonds being outstanding. (See Section 5.2) 
 



 

 

 
 

4 

Section 4.4 Transcripts of Proceedings. Each Applicant receiving Bond financing 
through the Authority shall furnish to the Authority upon the sale and delivery of the 
Bonds, two complete transcripts of the Financing Documents relating to such Bonds. Bond 
transcripts shall be hardback bound in library standard quality binders at the cost and 
expense of the Applicant. 
 

Section 4.5 Bond Validation Proceedings. The Authority may require that before 
issuance, its Bonds be validated by the Circuit Court of the County of Bedford, Virginia, 
pursuant to the requirements of the Code. The costs, expenses and fees incurred in 
connection with any bond validation proceeding required by the Authority, including 
attorneys' fees, shall be paid by the Applicant. 
 

Section 4.6 Additional Information Required of Applicants. 
 

(a) The Authority may adopt an inducement resolution conditioned upon the 
subsequent furnishing of certain information satisfactory to the Authority. All required 
information shall be promptly furnished to the Authority and failure of any Applicant to 
furnish such information shall constitute a ground for rescission of any inducement 
resolution adopted pursuant to such conditions. 
 

(b) The Authority may, at its option, require the furnishing of appraisals, 
evaluations or reports respecting the Project or any portion thereof. The Authority may 
retain advisors and consultants to advise it regarding any Project or other action which it is 
requested to undertake by any Applicant. All costs, fees and expenses of such appraisals, 
reports, consultants and advisors incurred by the Authority after prior notification to the 
Applicant shall be paid by the Applicant. 

 
(c) Since the Authority usually acts based upon information furnished to it solely 

by the Applicant, the Authority reserves the right to require at any time the furnishing of 
additional information concerning the Applicant, its financial statements, and any other 
information deemed relevant by the Authority, In instances where the Applicant has 
undergone changes in form or management or where the security to be given for payment 
of the Bonds has changed, the Applicant shall report such changes promptly to the 
Authority. 
 
Section 4.7 Notice of Public Hearing. The Applicant shall publish a notice of public hearing 
with respect to each Application for which a public hearing is required by the Code in 
accordance with Virginia and federal law, to be published in a newspaper having general 
circulation in the County of Bedford, Virginia and in such other newspapers as may be 
required. The notice shall be in a form approved by the Authority's Counsel and Bond 
Counsel. Persons who are interested in speaking at any public hearing held by the Authority 
are encouraged to submit their comments in writing. The Authority shall publish such 
additional notice or notices and hold such additional public hearings with respect to each 
Application as may be required by law or recommended by Counsel to the Authority. 



 

 

 
 

5 

Section 4.8 Projects Outside the County of Bedford, Virginia. Any Application to 
finance a Project located outside the County of Bedford, Virginia shall be accompanied by 
evidence satisfactory to the Authority that the county, city or town in which the Project is 
proposed to be located approves the proposed financing of the Project by the Authority. 
Following the adoption of an inducement resolution for such Project, the Applicant shall 
furnish to the Authority a certified copy of a resolution duly adopted by the governing body 
of such county, city or town stating that such governing body concurs with the inducement 
resolution adopted by the Authority. The Authority may also require additional evidence 
concerning the impact or effect of the Project on the area where it will be located, whether 
the Project has received appropriate local approvals or permits, and whether the Project is 
acceptable to the inhabitants where it will be located. 
 

ARTICLE V 
 

PROVISIONS TO BE INCORPORATED INTO RESOLUTIONS 
AND FINANCING DOCUMENTS 

 
Section 5.1 Inducement Resolutions. Each inducement resolution adopted by the 

Authority shall provide that it shall continue in full force and effect for a period of two 
years unless specifically extended by the Authority. 
 

Section 5.2 Payment of Authority Expenses. The Financing Documents adopted by 
the Authority for the benefit of any Applicant shall provide that the Applicant agrees to 
pay all costs, fees and expenses incurred by the Authority (including attorney's fees) in 
connection with: 
 

(a) the authorization, issuance and sale of the Authority's Bonds; 
 

(b) the ownership, occupation, operation or use of the Project being financed, 
whether owned by the Authority or the Applicant; 
 

(c) prepayment or redemption of the Authority's Bonds; 
 

(d) administrative costs and expenses of the Authority, including the fees of 
attorneys, accountants, engineers, appraisers or consultants, paid or incurred by the 
Authority by reason of the Bonds being outstanding or pursuant to requirements of the 
Financing Documents; and 
 

(e) Such other fees and expenses of the Authority, not directly related to the Project 
being financed for the Applicant, but attributable to the Authority's financing of industrial 
or commercial Projects, including without limitation, a share of costs of the Authority's 
annual audit as required by the Code, determined as follows: 
 



 

 

 
 

6 

(1) All costs and fees relating to the annual audit and directly 
attributable to a particular Applicant or Project, shall be charged to such 
Applicant; and 

 
(2) Any costs and fees of such audit not directly attributable to any 
Applicant or Project shall be allocated among all Applicants having Bonds 
outstanding, pro rata, as the amount of Bonds originally issued for such 
Applicant bears to the total face amount of Bonds issued by the Authority 
of which any portion of any issue remains outstanding and unpaid. 

 
Section 5.3 Indemnification of the Authority. Each Applicant shall agree to 

indemnify and save harmless the Authority and its officers, directors, employees and agents 
(hereinafter the "Indemnitees") from and against all liabilities, obligations, claims, 
damages, penalties, fines, losses, costs and expenses (hereinafter referred to as 
"Damages"), including without limitation: 

 
(a) all amounts paid in settlement of any litigation commenced or threatened 

against the Indemnitees, if such settlement is effected with the written consent of the 
Applicant; 
 

(b) all expenses reasonably incurred in the investigation of, preparation for 
or defense of any litigation, proceeding or investigation of any nature whatsoever, 
commenced or threatened against the Applicant, the Project or the Indemnitees; 
 

(c) any judgments, penalties, fines, damages, assessments, indemnities or 
contributions; and 
 

(d) the reasonable fees of attorneys, auditors, and consultants; 
 
provided that the Damages arise out of: 
 

(i) failure by the Applicant, or its officers, employees or agents, to comply 
with the terms of the Financing Documents and any agreements, covenants, 
obligations, or prohibitions set forth therein; 

 
(ii) any action, suit, claim or demand contesting or affecting the title of the 

Project; 
 

(iii) any breach of any representation or warranty set forth in the Financing 
Documents or any certificate delivered pursuant thereto, and any claim that any 
representation or warranty of the Applicant contains or contained any untrue or 
misleading statement of fact or omits or omitted to state any material facts 
necessary to make the statements made therein not misleading in light of the 
circumstances under which they were made; 

 



 

 

 
 

7 

(iv) any action, suit, claim, proceeding or investigation of a judicial, 
legislative, administrative or regulatory nature arising from or in connection with 
the construction, acquisition, ownership, operation, occupation or use of the 
Project; or 

(v) any suit, action, administrative proceeding, enforcement action, or 
governmental or private action of any kind whatsoever commenced against the 
Applicant, the Project or the Indemnitees which might adversely affect the validity 
or enforceability of the Bonds, the Financing Documents, or the performance by 
the Applicant or any Indemnitee of any of their respective obligations thereunder. 
 
Section 5.4 Bond Counsel Opinion Required. Before issuing and delivering any of 

its Bonds, the Authority shall receive an unqualified approving opinion of recognized bond 
counsel licensed to practice law in Virginia and approved by the Authority stating, among 
other things, that the Bonds have been duly authorized, executed, issued and delivered, that 
the interest thereon is exempt from Federal income taxation under IRC §103 (or other 
applicable provision of law) and taxation by the Commonwealth of Virginia, and that the 
Bonds are exempt from registration requirements under applicable state and Federal 
securities laws. 
 

Section 5.5 Covenants to Preserve Tax Exempt Status of Bonds. All Financing 
Documents presented for approval by the Authority shall contain appropriate covenants of 
the Applicant designed to insure compliance with the requirements of IRC §103 to preserve 
the tax exempt status of interest on the Bonds, including without limitation, "arbitrage" 
requirements, capital expenditure limitations and reporting requirements. 
 

Section 5.6 Payments in Lieu of Taxes. In event title to the Project is held by any 
person or entity not subject to real or personal property taxes, the Applicant and any user 
of the Project, unless specifically exempted by the Authority, shall enter into an agreement 
to pay all taxes, levies, assessments, charges or other impositions which may be levied by 
any taxing authority on the Project as if such Applicant or user held title to the Project or 
any portion thereof. 
 
Section 5.7 Restriction on Advertising. The Applicant and any purchaser or underwriter of 
the Authority's Bonds shall not publish any advertisement, tombstone or other information 
with respect to the Authority's Bonds unless (a) such advertisement has been approved by 
the Chairman or Vice Chairman of the Authority and Counsel to the Authority and (b) such 
advertisement contains the statement set forth below with respect to the limited nature of 
the obligations. Any bond purchase agreement entered into in connection with the 
Authority's Bonds shall contain a covenant in substantially the following form which shall 
be binding on the Applicant, any purchaser and any underwriter of such bonds: 
 

The undersigned agree that no advertisement, tombstone or other 
information with respect to the Bonds shall be published in any newspaper 
or other publication unless such advertisement (a) is approved by the 
Chairman or Vice Chairman of the Authority and Counsel to the Authority 



 

 

 
 

8 

and (b) clearly states that the Bonds are limited obligations of the Authority 
payable solely from revenues and that neither the Commonwealth of 
Virginia nor any political subdivision thereof, including the Authority and 
the County of Bedford, Virginia, shall be obligated to pay the principal of 
or the interest or premium, if any, on the Bonds and neither the faith and 
credit nor the taxing power of the Commonwealth of Virginia or any 
political subdivision thereof, including the Authority and the County of 
Bedford, is pledged to payment of the Bonds. 

 
ARTICLE VI 

 
REPORTS 

 
Section 6.1 Interim Reports by Applicants. Each Applicant shall file with the 

Authority a written report describing the status of its proposed financing no later than the 
last day of the second month after the adoption of an inducement resolution for the 
Applicant and every three months thereafter until the adoption of any Financing 
Documents by the Authority. Such written report shall include the proposed purchaser of 
the Bonds, the proposed terms of the Bonds, the status of Financing Documents, and the 
current status of the Project. Each Applicant shall promptly notify the Authority of any 
significant or material changes to any information previously furnished by the Applicant 
to the Authority, including specific descriptions of new or changed plans for the placement 
of the bonds and the security to be offered. 
 

Section 6.2 Annual Reports of Applicants. Each Applicant, after the issuance and 
sale of the Authority's Bonds for the benefit of such Applicant, shall annually report to the 
Authority no later than June 30 the status of the Project, which shall include the outstanding 
and unpaid balance of Bonds issued for the Project, whether any event of default has 
occurred under the Financing Documents, and other information relating to the financing 
of the Project and benefits to the County of Bedford, Virginia. 
 

Section 6.3 Reports by Authority Chairman, Directors, etc. At each meeting of the 
Authority, the Chairman, each Director, the Secretary, the Treasurer and the Authority's 
Counsel shall report any action taken on behalf of the Authority since the last meeting, 
including receipt of reports required under Sections 4.6, 6.1 and 6.2. 
 

ARTICLE VII 
 

ENFORCEMENT 
 

Section 7.1 Enforcement of Provisions. The Authority may refuse to consider or 
adopt any inducement resolutions, Financing Documents or any other matters presented 
for its consideration if the Applicant has failed to comply with the requirements of these 
Rules. 
 



 

 

 
 

9 

 
 

Section 7.2 Repeal of Actions Previously Taken. The Authority may rescind or 
repeal any inducement resolution previously adopted by it or any other action taken by the 
Authority because of failure of the Applicant to comply with the provisions of these Rules 
or because of substantial changes in the management, ownership, Project plan or financial 
circumstances of the Applicant; provided, however, no inducement resolution or action 
taken by the Authority shall be repealed or rescinded unless prior written notice of such 
proposed action shall have been mailed to the Applicant at least three weeks before the 
date upon which such action is proposed to be taken.  
 

 Notwithstanding the foregoing, no such action shall be taken by the Authority 
which will impair or adversely affect the interests of the holders of the Authority's Bonds. 
 

ARTICLE VIII 
 

STATEMENTS OF POLICY   
 

Section 8.1 Construction, Operation and Effect of Rules. These Rules are intended 
as guidelines to promote and insure the orderly and consistent consideration of 
Applications, Financing Documents and other matters brought before the Authority. For 
good cause, application of these Rules may be modified and waived upon a case by case 
basis upon the consent of the Authority. Any action taken by the Authority not in 
conformity with these Rules shall, nevertheless, be fully effective as if taken in compliance 
with these Rules. It is, however, the policy of the Authority that each Applicant comply 
fully and completely with these Rules, and failure to comply with these Rules may 
constitute grounds for refusal by the Authority to take any action requested. 
 

Section 8.2 Approval of Inducement Resolution not to Constitute an Endorsement 
of Applicant. The purpose of the Authority, as set forth in the Act, is to promote industry 
and develop trade by inducing manufacturing, industrial, governmental, commercial and 
non-profit enterprises to locate in or remain in the Commonwealth of Virginia. Pursuant to 
the Act, the Authority's powers shall be exercised for the benefit of the inhabitants of 
Virginia through the promotion of their safety, health, welfare, convenience or prosperity. 
Accordingly, the Authority's decision to adopt an inducement resolution or take other 
action will be based largely upon these factors. Further, the Act prohibits the Authority 
from operating any enterprise or Project. Since the Authority is a conduit for providing tax 
exempt financing to promote the commerce and industry of the Commonwealth of Virginia 
and the County of Bedford, Virginia, and given the express prohibition against operating 
enterprises or Projects, the Authority believes it is improper for it to inquire into matters 
relating to the business judgment of the management of any Applicant not relevant to the 
foregoing factors. The Authority may, however, examine the business decisions and other 
aspects of management of the Applicant should it deem such matters relevant to the 
authorization, issuance and sale of its Bonds. 
 



 

 

 
 

10 

 
In view of the foregoing limitations, the adoption of an inducement resolution or 

any other action taken by the Authority is not to be used by any Applicant in any manner 
whatsoever as an endorsement or approval of the Applicant, its policies or its management. 
 

Section 8.3 Security for Payment of Bonds. The Authority will require a showing 
that any issue of its Bonds is fully and adequately secured. If the Bonds are secured by a 
lien upon or security interest in the Project financed with the proceeds of such Bonds, the 
Authority may require an appraisal of the Project showing that it is valued in an amount 
sufficient to pay the outstanding principal amount of the Rules. Among other things, the 
Rules require that each Applicant inform the Authority of any new developments or 
material changes in information which has been submitted to the Authority, either orally 
or in writing. Matters concerning the structure of the financing, the prospective purchasers 
of the Bonds and the security for payment of the Bonds are items of particular interest to 
the Authority; however, the Authority expects to be kept informed of all material changes 
to information submitted to it. 
 

By submitting an Application to the Authority, the Applicant agrees to abide by 
these Rules. Thus, the burden is placed upon the Applicant to review and to comply with 
these Rules. The principal sanction which may be applied by the Authority against any 
Applicant for failure to comply with the Rules would be a refusal to take any action 
requested by the applicant. Such a refusal might result in embarrassment to or considerable 
financial expenses on the part of the Applicant. To avoid such embarrassment or expense, 
the Authority urges each Applicant to keep the Authority fully informed of any new 
developments or material changes to information previously submitted to the Authority, 
including in particular, changes in the contemplated financing structure or the proposed 
security for the Bonds. As noted above, the burden is upon the Applicant to convey this 
information to the Authority in a timely manner. What constitutes "timely" depends upon 
the circumstances of each case; however, each Applicant is urged to provide all such 
information before considerable time and expense is incurred upon matters which may 
prove unacceptable to the Authority. Any such communications should be made directly 
to the Authority's officers, directors and counsel. 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 

BEDFORD COUNTY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
Agenda Item Summary 

                

AGENDA ITEM # 10C  

MEETING DATE: May 2, 2024 

MEETING TYPE: Regular Meeting 

ITEM TITLE: Adoption of a Childcare Facilities grant program 
                

SUMMARY 

Following the joint meeting with the Town of Bedford, as part of the larger budget discussion, staff is proposing the 
use of existing incentive funds to be set aside for a Childcare Facilities grant. The proposed grant would be a 1:1 
matching grant up to $15,000 per facility for capital expenses. 
The grant would be open to existing providers that are already licensed, or those who would use these funds to 
become a licensed provider in Bedford County. 
A total of $30,000 would be set aside for this funding per year, and each application would be reviewed first by staff 
and then presented to the EDA for consideration. 
 
See attached summary and process.  
 

 

 



       

  

Childcare Facilities Grant 
 
SUMMARY 

 The Bedford County EDA offers a matching grant up to $15,000 for capital expenses 
related to the creation or expansion of a childcare facility within Bedford County and 
outside of the Town of Bedford limits.   

 The childcare grant applicant shall be a Licensed Provider/Program by the 
Commonwealth of Virginia, or the grant would achieve licensure status to qualify for this 
grant.  (https://www.childcare.virginia.gov/providers/become-a-licensed-provider) 

 The grant funds apply to facility modifications/upgrades required for licensure and/or 
other related capital investments specifically affiliated with childcare services (i.e., cribs, 
playground equipment, books, etc.).    

 Proposals cannot conflict with the development standards established by the National 
Trust for Historic Preservation if related to facility modifications.  

 The grant will be disbursed as reimbursement for documented, qualifying expenditures. 
 

APPLICATION PROCESS 
 Submit application directly to Bedford County Office of Economic Development. 
 The application must include license, receipts and proof of payments made to show the 

requirements and match met by the applicant. 
 Business Programs Coordinator presents expenditures to Economic Development 

Authority for approval of grant disbursement. 
 
COUNTY INVOLVEMENT 
The Economic Development Authority will fund one-half of the total grant amount up to 
$15,000 in reimbursement. Fully administered and funded by the Bedford County Economic 
Development Authority and Bedford County Office of Economic Development staff. 
 
 


	05_02_2024_EDA_AGENDA
	FY25 EDA PROPOSED BUDGET - FINANCE REVIEWED.pdf
	556 EDA SUMMARY
	5600 ADMIN
	5610 PERFORM INCENT
	5615 BD CTR FOR BUS
	5621 BD BREWERY
	5655 MV CTR FOR COMMERCE
	5680 WASHINGTON ST
	5685 NLBTC

	March 2024 Income Statement.pdf
	Income Statement 1
	Income Statement 2
	Income Statement 3
	Income Statement 4
	Income Statement 5
	Income Statement 6
	Income Statement 7

	March 2024 Budget Report.pdf
	Budget 1
	Budget 2
	Budget 3
	Budget 4
	Budget 5
	Budget 6
	Budget 7


